
 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

MAY 17, 2016 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the May 2, 2016 Board of City Commission 
Working Session minutes. 

2. Consider approval of the May 3, 2016 Board of City Commission 
Regular meeting minutes. 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
F. BIDS: 

1. Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving 
Contract and Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 
203, Project 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 4th Addition). 

2. Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving 
Contract and Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 
206, Project 2016-07 (Big Sky Additions). 

3. Consider the award of bid and a contract for the fabrication and 
installation of way-finding signs 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider approval of monthly bills. 
2. Consider approval of a correction in 2015 True & full Value for 

Travis & Debbie Toepke. 
3. Consider approval of CPM Agreement with NDDOT for Downtown 

ADA curb ramp replacement.  
4. Consider temporary closure of Red Wing Drive for soccer event. 
5. Consider sale of City of Mandan property with an estimated value 

over $1,000 by the Public Works Department. 
6. Consider approval of beer garden and street dance application for 

Buggies-n-Blues, Wild West Grill Fest and Oktoberfest (all for 
Mandan Progress Organization). 

7. Consider approval of beer garden application from the Mandan 
Eagles Club for the All-School Reunion for Saturday, July 2, 2016. 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

May 17, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 

 
8. Consider approval of Silver Dollar Bar application for beer garden 

and street dance for June 11, 2016 and July 2-3, 2016. 
9. Consider approval of site authorization for Horse Race ND from 

July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017 at the following: 
i. Moscow Bar 
ii. Strawberry Bar 

10. Consider approval of Site Authorizations for the Fort Abraham 
Lincoln Foundation from July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017 for the 
following: 
i. Lonesome Dove 
ii. Seven Seas (Baymont Inn & Suites) 
iii. Midway Lanes 

11. Consider approval of the following games of chance: 
i. Ryker Wallace Benefit at Roughrider Harley Davidson from 

June 1, 2016 through August 27, 2016. 
ii. Rug Rat Benefit Softball Tournament (Bismarck Cancer 

Center) at Mandan Softball Complex on June 3, 2016. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Consider approval of a Fire Code Appeals Board. 
2. Consider approval of a request for bids for the sale or lease of the 

land at 301 E Main Street. 
3. Consider funding requests from the Mandan Progress Organization 

Funding Committee. 
4. Consider the swapping of projects within the Transportation 

Improvement Program (TIP).  
5. Update on Old Red Trail adjacent to Sports Complex.  
6. Consider Request for Annexation and utility service at 2300 14th 

Avenue SE. 
 
J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. Consider Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $5,030,000 Refunding 
Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series A. 

 
K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. May 20, 2016 (Working Session – noon) 
2. June 7, 2016 
3. June 21, 2016 
4. June 28, 2016 
5. July 5, 2016 (5 p.m.) (5:30 p.m.) 
 

M. ADJOURN 
 



Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

May 17, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 
 

Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at 
Mandan City Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of 
citizens throughout the City. Individuals wishing to address the Board are 
encouraged to make arrangements with the Board President or the City 
Administrator prior to the meeting. Comments should be made to the Board and 
not to individuals in the audience and be related to City operations and programs. 
The Board will not hear personal complaints against any person connected with 
the City. If a citizen would like to add a topic to the agenda, arrangements must 
be made in advance with the City Administrator or Board President. The Board 
reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time allowed for public participation. 
The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson.  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 2, 2016 Working Session 

Page 1 of 8 

 The Mandan City Commission met in a working session at 5:30 p.m. on May 2, 

2016 in the Veterans’ Conference Room at Mandan City Hall, 205 2
nd

 Ave NW, Mandan, 

ND. Commissioners present were Van Beek, Tibke, Rohr, Laber, and Braun. City 

Department Heads present were City Administrator Neubauer, City Attorney Brown, 

Finance Director Welch, Building Official Lalim, Water Treatment Plant Superintendent 

D. Fries, Fire Chief Nardello, Director of Public Works Wright, Assessor Shaw, Police 

Chief Ziegler, Wastewater Treatment Plant Superintendent Himmelspach, Planning & 

Engineering Director Froseth, Business Development and Communications Director 

Huber, Deputy Police Chief Leingang, Code Enforcement Officer Camisa.  

 

Discussion Items: 

Recap and discussion regarding 2016 budget. Finance Director Welch presented the 

following budget topics and details for review and discussion: 

 

2017 Budget Calendar 

 May 2016 – Finance department to supply budget instructions and worksheets to 

departments. 

 June 15-24, 2016 – Budget worksheets due from departments. 

 July/August 2016 – Budget and Finance Committee to conduct internal budget 

hearings with department managers, supervisors, and portfolio commissioners. 

 August 16, 2016 – Introduction and first consideration, and call for public hearing 

of Ordinance adopting Budget. 

 September 20, 2016 – Board of City Commissioners to conduct public hearing. 

Second and final consideration of Ordinance adopting Budget. Resolution 

establishing rates and charges for services. 

 September 21, 2016 – Finance department to submit certified copy of levy and 

certified copy of final budget to Morton County Auditor. 

 

Building Inspection Department 

 All Permits – Building, Plumbing, Utility, Gas, etc… 

 2015 Revenue – $498K 

 1
st
 Quarter 2016 Permits – on pace with 2015. 

 1
st
 Quarter 2016 Permit Value – ahead of 2015. 

 Building Official Lalim discussed the building permit activity for April 2016 and 

what he sees on the horizon for 2016.  

 

State Aid Distribution 

 State of ND collections consisting of sales, gross receipts, use, and motor vehicle 

excise taxes. 

 2015 – 9.3% or $202K decrease from 2014. 

 State of ND February 2016 Revised Revenue Forecast – State Aid Distributions to 

counties and cities are estimated to be 26.0% less than State’s May 2015 Forecast 

for State’s 2015-2017 biennium. 

o Mainly due to declining State sales tax collections, a large portion of 

which is tied to energy production in the western part of the state. 

 2016 1
st
 Quarter – 28.0% decrease or $150K 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 2, 2016 Working Session 

Page 2 of 8 

 State of ND next Revenue Forecast – scheduled to be released during July or 

August 2016. 

 

Highway Tax Distribution 

 State of ND collections consisting of motor vehicle registration and related fees, 

fuels taxes, special fuels taxes, use taxes, and special fuels excise taxes. 

 2015 – 7.0% or $92K decrease from 2014. 

o Mainly due to declining State sales tax collections, a large portion of 

which is tied to energy production in the western part of the state. 

 2016 1
st
 Quarter – 17.3% decrease or $54K 

 

1% City Sales Taxes 

 2015 – 45.9% or $782K increase from 2011. 

 2015 – 7.1% or $188K decrease from 2014. 

 2016 1
st
 Quarter – 9.8% decrease or $55K 

 Business Development and Communications Director Huber offered comments 

about increases and decreases in taxable sales and purchases for certain industry 

sectors in the local area. 

 

Dedication of 1% City Sales Tax (Mandan Code of Ordinances – Section 22-2-7) 

 April 1991 to 2015: 

o Property Tax Reduction – $15M 

 50% to General Fund – established by Budget Policy. 

o Municipal Debt Reduction – $2.3M 

o Street, Water and Sewer Improvements – $8.2M 

o Job and Economic Development – $8M 

o Total – $33.5M 

 

1% Restaurant and Lodging Taxes 

 2015 – 31.4% or $100K increase from 2011. 

 2015 – 3.0% or $12K increase from 2014. 

 2016 1
st
 Quarter – 22.1% increase or $19K 

 

Water and Sewer Utility Charges for Services 

 2015 – $500K more than projected. 

 Accounts/Units – 4.4% increase. 

 Water Volume – 6.3% increase. 

 Wastewater Volume – 7.4% increase. 

 Water Meter Replacement Project 

 Base Rate increase: 

o High Service Pump Optimization Phase I Project = $3.2M 

 Cost share funding with ND State Water Commission. 

 City’s estimated share = $1.35M 

 $0.90/month/residential account. 

 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 2, 2016 Working Session 

Page 3 of 8 

Solid Waste Utility Charges for Services 

 2015 – $100K more than projected. 

 Increase in accounts. 

 Landfill – $77K more than projected. 

 Base Rate increase: 

o Dakota Sanitation Recycling Services Agreement – $0.15 ($5.50 to $5.65) 

increase in Residential Base Rate for 2017 Budget. 

 

Solid Waste Utility Service Contracts 

 Solid Waste Collection Services Agreement with Armstrong Sanitation & Roll-

Offs expires on October 31, 2017. 

 Solid Waste Hauling Services Agreement with Armstrong Sanitation & Roll-Offs 

expires on October 31, 2017. 

 

Street Light Utility Charges for Services 

 2015 – $14K more than projected. 

 Increase in accounts. 

 

Utility Bill 

 2016 City monthly utility bill for a residential home using 800 cubic feet or 8 

units of water: 

o Mandan = $82.95 

o Bismarck = $82.60 

 

City Taxable Valuation 

 2015 Residential – 48.9% increase since 2011. 

 2015 Commercial – 69.5% increase since 2011. 

 2015 Total – 52.4 % increase since 2011. 

 2016 – to be determined on June 9. 

 

Board of Equalization 

 City – April 19 

 County – June 9 

o City Taxable Valuation estimated for 2016 Mill Levy and 2017 Budget. 

 State – August 9 

 

City Mill Levy 

 Mills: 

o 1 Mill – equal to one/one thousandth of Taxable Valuation. 

o 2015 – 31.05 Mills or 31.8% decrease since 2011. 

o 2016 – to be determined on August 16. 

 City share of 1 Mill: 

o 24% to 25% last 5 years. 

o City share of $1 Property Taxes – $0.24 

o 2016 – to be determined during 4
th

 Quarter. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 2, 2016 Working Session 

Page 4 of 8 

Value of 1 Mill 

 Value of 1 Mill – equal to one/one thousandth of Taxable Valuation. 

 2015 – 52.4 % or $23K increase since 2011. 

 2016 – to be determined on June 9. 

 

City Property Taxes 

 2015 General Fund – 4.0% or $138K decrease since 2011. 

 2015 Total – 3.9% or $173K increase since 2011. 

 2016 – to be determined on August 16. 

 Remove two year $75,000 property tax exemption for new residential 

construction? 

o City share: 

 Per $75,000 exemption (based on 2015 Mill Levy) = $225/year 

 All 204 $75,000 exemptions (based on 2015 Mill Levy) = 

$45,895/year 

o All Taxing Entities: 

 Per $75,000 exemption (based on 2015 Mill Levy) = $944/year 

 All 204 $75,000 exemptions (based on 2015 Mill Levy) = 

$192,608/year 

 

Property Taxes 

 2015 City property taxes for an existing residential property valued at $250,000, 

excluding special assessments: 

o Mandan = $750 

o Bismarck = $665 

 2011 – Mandan $210 higher than Bismarck. 

 

Salaries 

 No employee market or performance adjustments. 

o Mandan currently follows City of Bismarck 2015 salary ranges at 95%, 

effective July 1, 2013.   

 No employee Classification and Compensation Study. 

o Last Study was completed by Condrey & Associates in January 2008. 

 March 2016 Consumer Price Index-W (Midwest Urban cities less than 50,000) = 

0.8% increase during last 12 months.  

 2016 Budget – $6.9M (base) 

 2017 Budget – No employee market or performance adjustments. 

 

Benefits 

 Health Insurance (NDPERS) monthly premiums are fixed until June 30, 2017. 

o Cost = $1.3M 

o July 2015 – 15.1% increase 

 

 

 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 2, 2016 Working Session 

Page 5 of 8 

o Proposals: 

 Sanford Health presented Proposal in July 2015. 

 Eide Bailly completed an Employer Health Reform Analysis in 

October 2015 and presented Proposal in November 2015. 

 Blue Cross Blue Shield presented Proposal in December 2015. 

 High Deductible Plans and Health Savings Accounts? 

 Premium costs were similar to what we currently pay. Savings may 

be realized if went to a High Deductible Plan, but would then want 

to add a Health Saving Accounts provision, which may negate any 

monetary savings. 

 

Operations and Maintenance 

 2015 Operations and Maintenance savings: 

o Gas and Fuel = $208K 

o Utilities = $141K 

 Operations and Maintenance savings options: 

o Evaluate costs such as travel & meals, supplies, subscriptions, clothing 

allowances, etc…. 

o Consider joint purchase agreements with departments and other 

governmental agencies. 

o Establish Employee Recognition Program to generate cost-saving ideas. 

 This program is designed to stimulate employees to review work 

procedures, submit suggestions for improvements and to recognize 

and monetarily reward employees who submit suggestions which 

result in more efficient and more economical operations. These 

suggestions, if adopted, must result in measurable monetary 

savings for the City. 

 March 2016 Consumer Price Index-U (Midwest Urban cities less than 50,000) = 

1.0% increase during last 12 months. 

 

Capital Outlay 

 Continue lease-purchase agreements for machinery and equipment purchases. 

o Improves cash flow by spreading cost over asset life for machinery and 

equipment. 

 Extend useful life of machinery and equipment. 

o Preventative maintenance. 

 Defer or delay capital projects. 

o Repair vs. replace. 

 

Debt Service 

 Continue to refinance bonds at lower interest rates. 

 Maintain A1 Bond Rating (Moody's Investors Service) 

o Upper-medium grade and low credit risk. 

 

General Fund Balance (December 31) 

 17% Minimum Reserve – Government Finance Officers Association 

recommended Best Practice. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 2, 2016 Working Session 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 2015 Actual: 

o Reserved – $1.8M or 17% of operating expenditures. 

o Unreserved – $3.2M or 31% of operating expenditures. 

o Total – $5M or 48% of operating expenditures. 

o Net savings – $531K 

 2016 Budget (Revised): 

o Reserved – $1.8M or 17% of operating expenditures. 

o Unreserved – $1.7M or 16% of operating expenditures. 

o Total – $3.5M or 33% of operating expenditures. 

 

General Fund 2016 Budget (Original vs. Revised) 

 Revenues: 

o $863K decrease: 

 State Aid Distribution = $687K 

 25% to 30% decrease. 

 Highway Tax Distribution = $251K 

 25% to 30% decrease. 

 Street Department 

 Expenditures: 

o $174K decrease: 

 Mandan Park District = $206K 

 State Aid Distribution (30%) 

 Fund Balance: 

o $689K decrease: 

 Offset by $531K net savings from 2015. 

 

Department Requests (2017 – 2019) 

 Personnel 

 Capital Outlay 

 Construction Projects 

 

Summary 

 State Aid Distribution and Highway Tax Distribution estimated to decrease 25% 

to 30% during 2016. 

 General Fund Balance is estimated to decrease $689K during 2016. The decrease 

is offset by $531K net savings from 2015. 

 2016 Budget projections to be reviewed and updated as of: 

o March 31 

o June 30 

o July/August – State of ND next revenue forecast. 

 Further revenue decreases? 

 

 

 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 2, 2016 Working Session 

Page 7 of 8 

 

Recommendations 

 Remove two year $75,000 property tax exemption for new residential 

construction. 

 Limit growth in property tax revenue to new construction and expired exemptions 

added to tax rolls as determined by County Board of Equalization. 

 Re-evaluate vacant or unfilled positions in General Fund based on need (essential 

vs. non-essential). 

 No additional personnel in General Fund unless offset by new departmental 

revenue. 

 Departments should review and reduce overtime by restructuring employee 

working hours. 

 Continue to evaluate and review health insurance options. 

 Increase vacation leave carryover from 120 hours to 240 hours. 

 Departments should consider cost-saving options for operations and maintenance 

expenditures. 

 Departments should review and update fees and charges. 

 Utility rates will be reviewed during August 2016. 

 Maintain the following General Fund Balances: 

o Reserved = 17% of operating expenditures. 

o Unreserved = 8% (no less than) of operating expenditures. 

o Total = 25% (no less than) of operating expenditures. 

 

Commissioner Tibke thought one thing to consider is with the increase in values not 

reducing mills anymore; how sustainable will that be with the understanding that we are 

trying to be competitive by reducing mills. We don’t have a sales base to buffer our 

increase with our infrastructure costs and increased population. We have pushed back on 

Wastewater Treatment projects in addition to the police and fire department budget 

issues. She suggested doing less with more.  

 

Mayor Van Beek indicated that overtime is one of our most controllable expenses. If we 

can go with emergency only overtime to help out where we can, that would cut down on 

the bottom line. Finance Director Welch stated that approximately $316,000 was paid out 

in overtime citywide with about 70% of that being non-holiday related hours. Welch 

suggested departments to review the services they provide, not to eliminate the core or 

essential services nor the quality, but to possibly restructure their department’s employee 

hours accordingly so there is less idle time and more efficiency.   

 

Commissioner Rohr commented on the reactive response of the employees vs. the 

proactive response, with management efficiency put in there as well. With one major 

winter with a lot of snow, the overtime budget would be blown. Being proactive by being 

prepared for such an incidence would help in the long run. Administrator Neubauer 

mentioned savings in overtime might be realized since the Police Department is almost 

fully staffed. Finance Director Welch stated that approximately one-half or 50% of the 

overtime citywide is in the Police Department since the Department was understaffed 

resulting from vacant positions for many years. Police Chief Ziegler explained some of 

the other unforeseeable expenses such as court costs, travel to pick up prisoners, or 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 2, 2016 Working Session 

Page 8 of 8 

homicides cases, etc. Administrator Neubauer stated that 2016 might be OK due to the 

savings from 2015 that we have carried over to 2016 which should help with the loss of 

some State Aid and Highway Tax money. But 2017 will be a challenge.  

 

Commissioner Tibke questioned whether reducing the amount of State Aid that was 

shared with the Park District was included in the budget recommendations in the 

PowerPoint presentation?  Finance Director Welch said that it wasn’t since the 

recommendations presented are not all inclusive at this time but Welch said that it would 

be added to the list for the next Joint Board discussion between the City and Park 

District. Commissioner Tibke mentioned that even a 5% reduction which would be 

approximately $100,000, would help. Removing the two-year $75,000 property tax 

exemption for new residential construction would help. Commissioner Laber brought up 

the savings from 2015 and how she would like it to go towards a pool of money for merit 

increases for employees, especially for employees that have budget cutting ideas. 

Commissioner Tibke mentioned an employee recognition program.  Finance Director 

Welch reminded the Board that the City added additional employees during the past five 

years in order to keep up with the demand for public services. 

         

ADJOURN 

There being no further actions to come before the Board Commissioner Tibke moved and 

Commissioner Laber seconded to adjourn at 7:00 p.m. The motion received unanimous 

approval of the Board members present and the meeting adjourned. 

 

/s/ James Neubauer  /s/ Arlyn Van Beek 

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 

 Arlyn Van Beek  

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 3, 2016 

Page 1 of 11 

The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on May 3, 2016 

in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.  Commissioners 

present were Van Beek, Tibke, Rohr, Braun, and Laber. Department Heads present were 

Finance Director Welch, Police Chief Ziegler, City Attorney Brown, City Administrator 

Neubauer, Fire Chief Nardello, Business Development & Communications Director 

Huber, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth, Planner Decker, Assessor Shaw, and 

Building Official Lalim. Absent:  Director of Public Works Wright. 

 

B.         APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Commissioner Laber moved to approve the 

Agenda. Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous 

approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

C.         PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:  Mayor Van Beek invited anyone interested to 

speak for or against any items on the Agenda to come forward.  A second announcement 

was made inviting anyone to come forward to speak on the Agenda.  Hearing none, this 

portion of the Public Communications was closed.   

 

D. MINUTES: 

1.        Consider approval of the following minutes from the Board of City Commission of 

April 19, 2016 regular meeting and Board of Equalization meeting of April 19, 2016.  

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the minutes as presented. Commissioner Tibke 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed. 

 

E.         PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

F.         BIDS: 

 

G.        CONSENT AGENDA 

1.        Consider for approval Lakewood Commercial Cove First Addition First Replat. 

2.        Consider Police Department requests for out-of-state travel for training:  

(i) National SWAT Conference in Louisville, KY – Aug. 14-20, 2016 for Lt. Pat Haug; (ii) 

PRW Advanced Sniper Scenarios training in Fairplay, CO – Nov. 3-6, 2016 for Police 

Officer David Raugust. 

3.        Consider approval of road restrictions and detour for Armed Forces Day parade 

event planned for May 21
st
. Commissioner Laber indicated that this sounded like a great 

idea. Her question was whether this event was definitely approved. Planning & 

Engineering Director Froseth stated there have been some contingencies on this event and 

meetings will be occurring with the organizers of the event.  The City will review the 

plan before signing off on moving forward with the event which includes written 

authorization from the Highway Patrol Department related to blocking off the east bound 

Memorial Bridge as requested by the organizers.  The second provision is a provision for 

the signage company to create the signs for the detours and road restrictions for this 

event.  As of now, the City of Mandan is still waiting for those contingencies and barring 

those two items, the City is satisfied with the event plans.  The organizer of the event was 

available to answer any questions.    



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 3, 2016 

Page 2 of 11 

4.        Consider approval of MPO event road closures. 

5.        Consider for approval for a Change Order for additional Storm Sewer work on the 

water main replacement project. 

6.        Consider for approval final plat for Lakewood 8
th

 Addition First Replat. 

7.        Consider approval of a Special Sunday opening for the Mandan Moose on June 

12, 2016. 

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Consent Agenda as stated. Commissioner 

Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

H.       OLD BUSINESS: 

1.        Presentation by Mike Manstrom, Dougherty & Company LLC, regarding the 

financing proposal for the Mandan Sports Complex.  Mike Manstrom of Dougherty & 

Company LLC presented a status update on the sales tax issue as far as timing and the 

size of the bond issuance.  He reported that the Joint Powers Agreement has been signed 

by the City of Mandan and the Park District.  The attorneys are working on 

documentation and the official statement used to market bonds is near completion.   

When the documents are completed they will be forwarded to the rating agency to get a 

rating wherein it is anticipated that it will receive an “A” rating for this sales tax issue.  It 

will be a revenue bond.  The bond issue is broken into three separate pieces.  Currently it 

is structured as a tax exempt series A - $16,545,000.  There is a taxable series A “T” 

taxable for $1 million and there is a tax exempt series B for $5 million.  So, tax exempt 

A, taxable B and tax exempt B (again).  It is structured that way to afford us an 

opportunity to price these bonds and establish an early redemption feature for series B tax 

exempt bond for $5 million.  The other two issues are structured as a 25-year maturity.  

We anticipate early pay down on both of the Series A and Series A taxable.  But first, 

principal and interest payments will be made on the Series A bond.   

 

In summary, the sales tax comes to the City; the City forwards the sales tax revenue to 

the Bank of North Dakota as escrow agent and trustee. Then the Park District on the 

construction will have to voucher out the funds.  The funds are monitored by the trustee 

as they are passed through construction.  Those funds will first go into the principal, 

interest payment account for the Series A bonds, the Series A taxable bonds and the 

Series B bonds.  Once all the funds are in for the payments the left over sales tax on an 

annual basis.  This is based on a 2015 sales tax collection which was based on 75%, $1.9 

million a year.  This is using 2015 sales tax projections going forward.  It is anticipated 

that the Series B bond, a $5 million bond, will be paid off in 6-7 years.  The taxable issue 

will be paid off in 3 years.  The Series A bonds should be paid off in 15 years, the Series 

A taxable bonds in 3 years and the Series B tax exempt bonds in 5 years.  All the bonds 

are anticipated to be paid off early.  The 25 year maturity has been established.  The total 

interest costs are estimated cost if the bonds are not redeemed early at $37 million. If the 

bonds are paid off early as anticipated, it should be around $28 million interest for a $7 

million cost savings to the City. This is an informational item wherein no action is 

required at this time. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 3, 2016 

Page 3 of 11 

I.        NEW BUSINESS: 

1.        Mandan Remediation Trust update on activities: An update was provided by Dave 

Glatt, Section Chief for the North Dakota Department of Health provided a summary of 

the history of the diesel fuel spill. The spill was pretty significant with up to 5 feet of 

diesel fuel on top of the water table pretty much throughout the downtown area.  

Burlington Northern recovered between 500-600 thousand gallons of diesel fuel. The 

process wasn’t really moving forward quickly enough.  This resulted in a lawsuit against 

BNSF wherein $23 million was awarded for remediation to clean up the contaminated 

materials.  The cleanup started around 2006. A consulting firm, Leggette, Brashears & 

Graham (LBG) was hired to take an aggressive approach to the remediation process. The 

next phase is the shutdown system, expected to take a few years. Highlights of the project 

and shutdown phase include: 

 The 281
st
 meeting of the MRT was held on 5/3/16.  Meetings are held monthly. 

 The Remediation Trust Balance on March 31, 2016 was approximately $6.5M. 

 Annual Operating Costs = $250-$300k/year – decreasing as parts of system are 

de-commissioned. 

 Installed a venting system, at minimal cost (less than $3,000) for the Law 

Enforcement 

Center as there were a few complaints of some odors in the maintenance room area.  

 Through February 2016 the following volumes of contaminants have been 

removed: 

o Hydrocarbon and VOC vapors 237,387 lbs. 

o Methane 125,085 lbs. 

o Free phase (liquid) fuel 547, 643 lbs. 

o In-place bioremediation reduction 2,953,504 lbs. 

 Decommissioning wells are generally monitored for a year or longer to see if any 

product returns. The plan is to go through a couple seasons of possible wet and 

dry weather cycles prior to recommending final closure. 

 The area is recommended for decommissioning when all wells in that area are less 

than 1/10 of a foot of measurable product in the well for at least one year.  

 MRT has allowed movement of wells or has decommissioned wells in the areas 

where redevelopment has occurred, such as Library Square I & II, Collins & 

Main, Mandan Place, American Bank Center (35 remediation wells previously 

closed). 

 Recommend that during the summer 2016 decommissioning of all wells in 

Remote Manifold areas RM 1-2, RM 1-3, RM 1-4, RM 2-1, RM 2-2, RM 2-3, and 

RM 2-4 (70 remediation wells). Note: Many more individual wells meet criteria 

for closure, but will be kept in place until entire manifold area can be closed. Only 

the recovery wells are currently needed for active remediation. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 3, 2016 

Page 4 of 11 

Mayor Van Beek extended a thank you to the State Health Department for their 

assistance and lead in this project.  Commissioner Tibke extended a thank you to Mr. 

Glatt for all the years of service and effort put forth to this project.   

 

2.        Consider deadline extension for Trails West Street Improvement District.  

Planning and Engineering Director Froseth stated that this is a request to consider a 

deadline extension for the Trails West Street Improvement District. Director Froseth 

provided the following summary of this project. In the second week of April the 

developer of the Trails West subdivision brought in preliminary plans for the 

development of the subdivision in NW Mandan. What is different with this plan set is 

that the set includes water and sewer utility with the storm sewer and streets all within 

one plan set. The verbal request by the developer is to construct the water and sewer 

utility under a 3-way agreement, and to construct the streets and storm sewer by utilizing 

the special assessment method.  The City has expressed to the developer to have two 

separate projects for consideration. The second main concern the Engineer’s office has 

with this development request is that the project would take place adjacent to the Old Red 

Trail reconstruction project and could conflict with the contractor of that project if not 

carefully coordinated. The NDDOT administratively concurred with entering into 

agreement with the contractor, Veit & Company, for Old Red Trail on April 21, 2016.  

The City has not had a conversation with this contractor about concerns of a sizeable 

project directly adjacent to them going on at the same time. As expressed to the Trails 

West developer, the Old Red Trail reconstruction project would need to take priority for 

the City.  

 

This project is not ready to be approved today because of the above concerns. Since it is 

not ready, it will miss the bid opening deadline of June 1, 2016 to be considered for 

improvement by the special assessment method. The Engineer’s office would benefit 

from being allowed to have additional time to discuss the above concerns. The developer 

is interested in completing these street improvements in 2016 by special assessment 

method. In order to consider this request the deadline would need to be extended. The 

developer is aware that constructing by 3-way agreement does not subject them to this 

deadline, but they are still interested in the special assessment method at this time. This 

project consists of 750 feet of new road with some major storm sewer involved. A 

preliminary estimate for this total project is about $400,000.  Director Froseth 

recommended extending the SID deadline by one month in order to allow discussions to 

occur regarding the conflicts foreseen with the Old Red Trail project. 

 

Commissioner Laber commented that with the Old Red Trail reconstruction going on, the 

City needs to make sure that that project is not impacted by this one.  Director Froseth 

stated that there is a verbal agreement with the developer wherein they have indicated 

they are willing to work with the City to not impact the Old Red Trail project. They 

anticipate their project will still take place this year and still not impact the Old Red Trail 

project.  He stated that will be outlined in a developer agreement which is the reason for 

the request to have an extension in this project.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to extend the bid opening deadline to July 1st, 2016 for SID 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 3, 2016 

Page 5 of 11 

consideration. Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.        GIS project update and consideration of four-wheelers to collect survey data.  

Planning and Engineering Director Froseth presented a request to use four-wheelers on 

streets to perform the data collection efforts for a project activity.  He explained that  

AE2S has been working with the City of Mandan since entering into a contract last fall 

on this project. The first main activity was to survey of the approximate ten square block 

pilot area in downtown Mandan. Following the survey last fall, a meeting was held to 

discuss how the information looked for the City’s future system and how it would look 

moving forward with the rest of the data collection. Those meetings ensured that the City 

and AE2S agreed on the same terms regarding data collection and AE2S has continued 

with data collection in the month of April.  Director Froseth reviewed the other tasks that 

have been ongoing over the last several months.  The use of four wheelers would improve 

efficiency of data collection in the areas outside the core central area of the city as 

infrastructure is more spread out. AE2S will benefit by using four-wheelers in those 

areas.  

 

Commissioner Braun inquired as to who holds liability should an accident occur while 

using one of the four-wheelers during this project.  Director Froseth replied that was not 

part of the discussion for this project.  He stated that it is an assumption that AE2S would 

have insurance coverage should an accident occur.  Commissioner Laber stated that 

generally businesses carry liability insurance to cover their employees.  She requested 

that Director Froseth discuss that with AE2S to make sure there is sufficient coverage.  

She recommended that if the City does allow this, if there is a traffic incident, personal 

injury, or some irregularity causing a nuisance activity, then the use of the four-wheelers 

should cease and that the City Commission then be allowed to re-visit the matter.  In the 

event there is any such incident, she recommended that the City Commission be notified 

and that the Police Chief and the City Engineer work together to cease the use of activity 

until discussions have occurred by the City Commission.   Mayor Van Beek concurred 

with the foregoing recommendation provided by Commissioner Laber.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve allowing AE2S to use four-wheelers on Mandan 

City streets when collecting survey data for the City of Mandan’s GIS project for so long 

as there are no traffic incidents or citizen concerns or complaints in which case the Police 

Chief and the Engineering Director will work together to cease that operation.  

Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.        Presentation by Mike Manstrom, Dougherty & Company LLC, regarding the sale 

of $5,030,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series A. (See Resolutions #3). 

Mike Manstrom, Dougherty & Company LLC, presented a request to award the negotiated 

sale of $5,030,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series A for the purpose of 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 3, 2016 

Page 6 of 11 

refunding the City's Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2007, Series C, Refunding 

Improvement Bonds of 2007, Series D and Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2008, Series B.  
The combined three bonds will save the City approximately $398,000.  Mr. Manstrom 

explained that the refinancing of the old Bonds is necessary to take advantage of the lower 

interest rates with the sale of the new Bonds. The following special assessment districts are 

affected as a result of the refinancing: 

• Storm Sewer #26 

• Sanitary Sewer #30 

• Sanitary Sewer #144 

• Street #137-Area A 

• Street #137-Area B 

• Street #138-Area B 

• Street #138-Area C 

• Street #138-Area D 

• Street #139 

• Street #l40 

• Street #141-Area A 

• Street #141-Area B 

• Street #141-Area C 

• Street #l43 

• Street #145 

• Street #149-Area A 

• Street #149-Area B 

• Street #149-Area C 

• Water and Sewer #48-Area A 

• Water and Sewer #48-Area B 

• Water and Sewer #50 

• Water and Sewer #53 

• Water and Sewer #54 

 

The total Net Present Value Benefit (NPV) savings is estimated to be $398,525 or 7.899%. 

This savings is net of the issuance costs. A common method to determine if the refunding is  

appropriate is that the savings, net of all issuance costs, should be at least 3% to 5% as a NPV 

percentage of the refunded bonds. The net savings from the refinancing will be passed on to 

the balances owed by the special assessment districts indicated above through lower interest 

rates effective May 25, 2016. 

 

Finance Director Welch stated that the savings are passed on to the property owners of those 

districts that are represented through this refinancing process.   

 

Mr. Manstrom mentioned that the City of Mandan once again reaffirmed its A1 rating by 

Moody’s.  He extended a thank-you to the City Administration and the numerous committee 

members to make the sales tax issue go forward and for getting the Joint Powers Agreement 

in place. He appreciated all the work that went into it. 

 

5.        Consider Mandan Growth Fund Committee recommendation regarding an 

application for Flex PACE interest buy-down by SSWII, LLP (leased to Stockmen’s 

Supply West).  Business Development and Communications Director Huber presented a  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 3, 2016 

Page 7 of 11 

recommendation from the Mandan Growth Fund (MGF) Committee regarding an 

application for an interest buy-down by SSWII, LLP.  The MGF Committee met on April 

28, 2016 and reviewed the application for an interest buy down of permanent financing 

for an expansion project through the Bank of North Dakota (BND) Flex PACE program. 

The applicant is seeking the maximum buy down amount of $153,846. The BND will 

provide 65% or $100,000 of the amount, with the local community required to provide 

35% or $53,846. The buy-down is on a principal amount of approximately $2 million. 

The total project financing is estimated at $2,750,000. The project involves permanent 

financing for a new building to be constructed by SSWII, LLP and leased to Stockmen’s 

Supply West. The business is located at 1716-40
th

 Avenue Southeast. The project 

involves the purchase of 2.5 acres of property at 1440 Action Drive Southeast.  SSWII, 

LLP, will be constructing a 28,500 sq. ft. building.  Stockmen’s Supply West has been in 

business in Mandan for 18 years. The business specializes in selling animal health and 

livestock supplies. The business currently has 8 full-time and 3 part-time employees. The 

expansion will include a veterinary clinic and increase sales of taxable merchandise 

wherein they may lease the space to another operator.   

 

The Growth Fund balance as of March 31, 2016, for undesignated economic development 

projects is $192,145.74. The buy-down will require a local match of $53,846. The 

recommendation is for a structured as a loan, with an interest rate of 2% to begin 

accruing at the commencement of the loan. The loan would be for a maximum buy-down 

period of five (5) years and to be repaid within an equal period for a total maximum loan 

length of ten (10) years. The Lewis & Clark Regional Development Council (LCRDC) 

will administer and service the loan for the City of Mandan for a 1% origination fee and 

all hard costs to be paid by the borrower and a 1% servicing fee on payments collected 

after the buy-down period ends.  

 

The MGF voted 5-0 (4 members were absent) to recommend approval of the interest buy-

down with a local match of $53,846 to be structured as a loan repayable within five (5)   

years after a maximum five-year buy-down period with a 2% interest rate and interest to 

begin accruing at the start of the loan. The buy-down is contingent upon approval of the 

lead lender and the Bank of North Dakota. 

 

Guy Halvorson stated that there are currently 8 fulltime and 3 part-time employees and 

there will be at least 2 practitioners at the Veterinary Clinic and up to 5 support staff for 

the clinic.  It is anticipated that 16 employees will be added by 2018.   

 

Director Huber clarified that SSWII, is an “LLP” not an “LLC” – noting that the correct 

name is SSWII, LLP.   

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the interest buy-down for SSWII, LLP, with 

the local match of $53,846 to be structured as a loan with the term and rate as 

recommended. Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 3, 2016 

Page 8 of 11 

6.            Consider deeding Lot 31, Block 1, less Auditor’s Lots A thru N of Lot 31, 

Borden Harbor 1
st
 Subdivision to the City of Mandan (County Parcel # 65-0171681) to 

the Borden Harbor Owners Association.  City Attorney Brown stated that Borden Harbor 

was platted as a separate lot in the Borden Harbor subdivision years ago, (possibly in 

1994).  It was taxed as a separate lot and sometime before 2011 the taxes were not paid 

so it went back to the county.  The county deeded it to the city without any knowledge by 

the City.  Last fall, the Corp of Engineers asked the City what they are doing as far as 

management of the harbor, issuance of dock permits, Corps of Engineers regulations 

being complied with, etc.  It was the city’s opinion that it should not be involved.  

Subsequently, City Administrator Neubauer and counsel encouraged all abutting lot 

owners to the harbor to form an association to own and manage the harbor.  The 

association now has sufficient members to function as an entity.  Attorney Brown 

recommended deeding the Borden Harbor lot to the association owners of record.  The 

deed runs to the Borden Harbor association.  Steve Pine was present to answer any 

questions on behalf of the Borden Harbor Association.  

 

Commissioner Braun moved to deed Lot 31, Block 1, less Auditor’s Lots A thru N of Lot 

31, Borden Harbor 1
st
 Subdivision to the City of Mandan County Parcel #65-0171681 to 

the Borden Harbor Owners Association.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll 

call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  

Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

J.        RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:    

1.        Second consideration of Ordinance No. 1237 amending and re-enacting Chapter 

16, Article 4 of the Mandan Municipal Code related to the Emerald Ash Borer and Dutch 

Elm Disease. Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Second consideration of  

Ordinance No. 1237 amending and re-enacting Chapter 16, Article 4 of the Mandan 

Municipal Code related to the Emerald Ash Borer and Dutch Elm Disease. Commissioner 

Laber seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

2.        Second consideration of Ordinance No. 1238 creating PUD District 2016-01 for 

Lakewood 8
th

 Addition First Replat. Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Second 

consideration of Ordinance No. 1238 creating PUD District 2016-01 for Lakewood 8th 

Addition First Replat.  Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.        Consider Resolution Awarding Sale of $5,030,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds 

of 2016, Series A. Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Resolution Awarding Sale 

of $5,030,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series A. Commissioner Rohr 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: 

Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 3, 2016 

Page 9 of 11 

K.       OTHER BUSINESS:   

1.        Consider options related to the possible transition of the Business Development & 

Communications Director position from contract to a civil service position.  City 

Administrator Neubauer presented an update on the matter previously discussed 

regarding the options related to the possible transition of the Business Development & 

Communications Director position from contractual position to a civil service position. 

He presented a 3-column spreadsheet “Comparison of the Bismarck Business 

Development Director & the Mandan Business Development & Communications 

Director” for review and discussion.  He explained that a comparison was conducted with a 

similar Business Development position in the City of Bismarck (without the communications 

portion) to Mandan’s Business Development & Communications Director position and it 

was suggested that a combination of the two positions be used in the creation of either a 

permanent position or language that would be utilized in a new contract.  Administrator 

Neubauer presented for consideration a suggested job description if the position is 

determined to be a permanent position and an updated contract to account for primary job 

functions (including a job description) if the contract is renewed.    

 

Commissioner Laber stated that this position belongs as a civil service position due to the 

Mandan community needing a position such as this to promote Mandan’s businesses and 

organizations.  She recommended discussing the establishment of the position as either a 

contract or civil service position and once that is determined, a salary could be discussed.  

Commissioner Braun concurred with Commissioner Laber’s recommendations and indicated  

this is a needed position for the City of Mandan.  He had no opinion as to whether the 

position should remain a contract position or civil service position.  Commissioner Rohr 

stated that it’s not unusual, in other areas, for this position to be contracted out. Sometimes 

they are contracted out if it is a shared position with other duties.  Commissioner Tibke stated 

she is leaning towards it being a contractual position for flexibility. She suggested revisiting 

an Economic Development contract package as a whole. It could be revised as Director 

Huber is capable of expanding her roles under these positions.  She recommended the 

position answer directly to the City Commission and allow for more flexibility in the 

contract(s) due to the shifting needs occurring within the City on an ongoing basis.  This 

should be discussed during the upcoming working session wherein economic development is 

a topic for discussion while at the same time review the funds allotted to this position as well 

as to the Bismarck Mandan Development Association, to Mandan Progress Organization, etc.  

Commissioner Rohr agreed that a review of the economic development program should be 

completed due to the community economics constantly changing.   

 

Commissioner Tibke suggested Director Huber provide input in order to assure the 

Commission addresses impact on funding.  She suggested this matter be discussed at an 

upcoming working session that would include input from Director Huber about her position 

and where she sees changes that might be beneficial to the city and subsequently develop a 

contract to that effect.  Administrator Neubauer stated that Director Huber’s contract was due 

to renew on February 1, 2016.  Commissioner Laber suggested that we move forward with 

determining the position as a Civil Service position and then if it needs to be revised it would 

come back to the Commission for review.  Mayor Van Beek commented that the position will 

continue to be accountable to the City staff and to the City Commission.  Commissioner 

Tibke commented that the position should be accountable directly to the City Commission.   

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 3, 2016 

Page 10 of 11 

Director Huber stated that she understands that the expired contract states that she is 

accountability to the City Commission.   She said she would welcome either a new contract 

or an appointment to a civil service position. However, she does not want to remain in limbo 

any longer.  The expired contract read that it was negotiable and that duties could be changed 

as long as agreed to by both parties. She also mentioned that the annual performance 

evaluation has not been completed that is also part of that contract.   Administrator Neubauer 

clarified that the performance appraisal was drafted in February and about that time 

discussions started to occur as to what to do with the whole economic package.  The review 

and performance appraisal are ready.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to transition the Business Development & Communications 

Director from a contractual employee to that of a civil service position.  Commissioner Tibke 

seconded the motion.   

 

Commissioner Tibke inquired as to what flexibility there is when changing duties if agreed 

upon by both parties.  Attorney Brown stated flexibility would be the same as with any 

employee.  Changes in the contract will require approval of both parties.  In a civil service 

position the employer has more control than it has with a contractual position.  Administrator 

Neubauer stated that he and Director Huber worked on the job description together and also 

with the contract renewal.  He explained that job descriptions are updated periodically as 

duties and responsibilities change from time to time for other city staff positions.  Likewise,  

if this position were to remain under a contractual position and those duties and 

responsibilities would need to change to meet the needs of the city or community economic 

development areas, proposed changes to the job could come back to the City Commission for 

review at any time.  Finance Director Welch commented that with his experience with HR 

personnel issues, an employee under civil service has certain due process rights available to 

that employee that may not be available to a contractual employee. That may be a significant 

difference.  Commissioner Rohr stated that the due process is a fairness doctrine that is put in 

place as it is intended to be fair to the employee.   

 

Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner 

Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion 

passed. 
 

Commissioner Braun stated that the annual performance review for Director Huber that was 

to be done in February was his responsibility.  He said that it was ready in February and then 

discussions began on pay and the 95 percentile and pulling the information together.  He 

stated that he accepts full responsibility for not getting Director Huber’s performance 

appraisal completed in a timely manner.   

 

Mayor Van Beek moved to the discussion on Director Huber’s wages.  Administrator 

Neubauer stated that her current salary is at $78,800. He explained that the most similar 

position within the City of Bismarck's Business Development position is at a Grade 30.   

Director Huber has 10 years of experience and has obtained a Certification as Economic 

Developer, in addition the communications portion of her job (which is not part of the 

Bismarck position).  Administrator Neubauer explained that when creating a pay range for 

this position, a comparison was made with the Bismarck Development Director position.   

Commissioner Rohr stated that there has been a 36% pay increase since the start of this 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of May 3, 2016 

Page 11 of 11 

position in 2006 to the current salary.  The suggested pay increase is approximately 7% that 

would bring her salary to $85,000.  Commissioner Laber reminded the Commission that at 

the recent working session that it was recommended that the city employees will most likely 

not receive a pay increase this year due to budgetary concerns.     

 

Administrator Neubauer explained that when salaries were evaluated and revised in 2013 

most of the city staff at that time was brought up to the 95th percentile.  This position was not 

re-graded at that time because it was part of an existing contract in place. Thus the request 

now for the larger percentage increase at this time to bring it in line to the 2015 salary levels.    

 

Commissioner Braun motioned to move Director Huber’s salary to $82,000.  Commissioner 

Rohr seconded the motion.  Commissioner Laber commented that a 3% increase would be 

$2,370.  If we do another adjustment and she needs an adjustment due to the City 

Commission’s comprehensive action to increase staff wages, she recommended that the 

Commission not give an increase greater than 3% and would like to see that when pay 

increases are given that they be given in an equal manner.   Roll call vote:  Commissioner  

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  No; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 
 

Administrator Neubauer stated that the tentative date set for the working session for 

economic development is Friday, May 20, 2016 at noon.  

 

Commissioner Laber extended a thank you to city staff for the City Wide Cleanup that 

occurred last Saturday.  Mayor Van Beek reported that 171 volunteers collected 451 bags of 

litter.  There were 10 different routes along interstate into Mandan that were cleaned up.  

Mayor Van Beek extended a thank you to the many organizations, businesses, residents and 

city staff that participated in Mandan’s 3rd Annual Cleanup Day.   

 

Mayor Van Beek presented the trophy that was won by the City of Mandan in a 

competition against the City of Bismarck for “Wear Blue for Child Prevention Week”.   

The City of Mandan wore more blue than the City of Bismarck and won the 2016 trophy. 

 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 

Commissioner Braun moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:57 p.m. Commissioner Laber 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed. 

 

   

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 

 Arlyn Van Beek,  

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  This is a review and possible award of bids for Street 

Improvement District No. 203, Project 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 4th Addition). 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  We received three bids on May 10th for the project 

and Mariner Construction was the low bidder.  Their bid amount was $365,020.62.  The 

Engineer's estimate was $415,868.40.  The bid is 12.3% lower than the engineer’s 

estimate.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Bid Tabulation 

2. District Map 

3. Resolution to approve Contract and Contractor’s Bond                              

                                             

FISCAL IMPACT:   The Project will be paid for by special assessments from the 

benefiting properties within the District. The construction cost of the project is 

$365,020.60 plus the engineering and administrative cost of $127,757.22 totaling 

$492,777.84. The special assessments will be assessed to the 19 benefitting lots and each 

would receive an estimated $25,935.68.   

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   These documents have been forwarded to the City Attorney for his  

   review.  

 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 12, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider award of bid and approving Resolution 

Approving Contract and Contractor’s Bond for 

Street Improvement District No. 203, Project 

2016-03(West Hills Estates 4th Addition). 

 

 

  

BID No. 1  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 203, Project 2016-03(West Hills 

Estates 4th Addition). 

Page 2 of 5 

RECOMMENDATION:  We would recommend awarding the project. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to award the bid to Mariner Construction as the low 

bidder of Street Improvement District 203 Project 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 4th 

Addition) in the amount of $365,020.62 and approve the Resolution approving Contract 

and Contractor’s Bond.  

 

 

 



 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 203, Project 2016-03(West Hills 

Estates 4th Addition). 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING CONTRACT AND CONTRACTOR’S BOND FOR  

STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 203 

(Project No. 2016-03) 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of the City of Mandan, North Dakota 

(the “City”), as follows: 

 

 1. It is hereby found and determined that this Board has heretofore 

caused Notice for Advertisement for Bids to be made for an improvement 

Street Improvement District No. 203 of said City, and has duly and 

publicly opened and considered said bids received pursuant to said Notice. 

 

 2. Said improvement is hereby ordered to be constructed in 

accordance with the plans and specifications therefore as heretofore 

adopted by this Board pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by this Board. 

 

 3. It is hereby found and determined that the lowest responsible 

bidder for various categories of the work, material and skill required for 

said improvement is Mariner Construction whose bid provides for the 

construction of said improvement at a total estimated base price of 

$365,020.62. 

 

 4. The President of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan and City Auditor are hereby authorized and directed to make and 

enter into a contract with said bidder on the part of the City, in the form 

prescribed by Sections 40-22-35 and 40-22-35, N.D.C.C. as amended, 

provided that said bidder shall within ten (10) days from this date execute 

said contract and a construction bond conditioned in accordance with the 

provisions of Sections 40-22-30 and 40-22-32 of said Code. 

       

Dated this 17
th

 day of May, 2016 

 

                                                                        _________________________                                             

      Arlyn Van Beek, President of the 

      Board of City Commissioners 

 

Attest: 

                                               

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  This is a review and possible award of bids for Street 

Improvement District No. 206, Project 2016-07 (Big Sky Additions). 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  On March 1, 2016 the Mandan City Commission 

approved the Resolution creating district, Resolution approving Engineer’s Report, 

Feasibility Report, and Resolution of Necessity.  On April 5th the Mandan City 

Commission approved the Resolution determining insufficiency of protest.  On April 19
 

the Mandan City Commission approved of the plans and specifications and approved 

advertising for bids for this project.  We received two bids on May 10th for the project 

and Mariner Construction was the low bidder in the amount of $801,935.00.  The 

Engineer's estimate was $936,197.90.  The bid is 14.3% lower than the engineer’s 

estimate.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Bid Tabulation 

2. District Map 

3. Resolution to approve Contract and Contractor’s Bond                              

                                             

FISCAL IMPACT:   The Project will be paid for by special assessments from the 

benefiting properties within the District. The construction cost of the project is 

$801,935.00 plus the engineering and administrative cost of $280,677.25 totaling 

$1,082,612.25. The special assessments will be assessed to the benefitting lots.  Each unit 

of cost would receive an estimated $22,321.90. 

 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 12, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider award of bid and approving Resolution 

Approving Contract and Contractor’s Bond for 

Street Improvement District No. 206, Project 

2016-07(Big Sky Additions). 

 

 

  

BID No. 2  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 206, Project 2016-07(Big Sky 

Additions). 

Page 2 of 5 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   These documents have been forwarded to the City Attorney for his  

   review.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  We would recommend awarding the project. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to award the bid to Mariner Construction as the low 

bidder of Street Improvement District 206 Project 2016-07 (Big Sky Additions) in the 

amount of $801,935.00 and approve the Resolution approving Contract and Contractor’s 

Bond.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 206, Project 2016-07(Big Sky 

Additions). 

Page 5 of 5 

 

RESOLUTION  

APPROVING CONTRACT AND CONTRACTOR’S BOND FOR  

STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 206 

(Project No. 2016-07) 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of the City of Mandan, North Dakota 

(the “City”), as follows: 

 

 1. It is hereby found and determined that this Board has heretofore 

caused Notice for Advertisement for Bids to be made for an improvement 

Street Improvement District No. 206 of said City, and has duly and 

publicly opened and considered said bids received pursuant to said Notice. 

 

 2. Said improvement is hereby ordered to be constructed in 

accordance with the plans and specifications therefore as heretofore 

adopted by this Board pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by this Board. 

 

 3. It is hereby found and determined that the lowest responsible 

bidder for various categories of the work, material and skill required for 

said improvement is Mariner Construction whose bid provides for the 

construction of said improvement at a total estimated base price of 

$801,935.00. 

 

 4. The President of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan and City Auditor are hereby authorized and directed to make and 

enter into a contract with said bidder on the part of the City, in the form 

prescribed by Sections 40-22-35 and 40-22-35, N.D.C.C. as amended, 

provided that said bidder shall within ten (10) days from this date execute 

said contract and a construction bond conditioned in accordance with the 

provisions of Sections 40-22-30 and 40-22-32 of said Code. 

       

Dated this 17
th

 day of May, 2016 

 

                                                                        _________________________                                             

      Arlyn Van Beek, President of the 

      Board of City Commissioners 

 

Attest: 

                                               

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider bids and a contract for visitors way-finding sign 

fabrication and installation.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The City Commission at its April 19, 2016, 

meeting approved extending a request for bids for shop drawings, fabrication, permitting, 

shipping, and installation of multiple vehicular way-finding signs, posts, break-a-way 

bases, and other incidental work at 24 locations throughout the City of Mandan.  

The purpose of the proposed signs is to provide direction to visitors for various 

attractions and destinations as well as a sense of community branding and character. 

 

Public notices of the request for bids were published in the Bismarck Tribune on April 

22, 29 and May 6 and in the Mandan News on April 22 and 29 as well as on the City’s 

website and through the Quest Construction Data Network. 

 

Project consultant Berberich Design previously received tentative approval of the sign 

package proposal from the N.D. Department of Transportation with final approval to 

come once the package is bid out and the fabricator produces engineered shop drawings 

that are signed and stamped by a professional engineer. Co-consultant KLJ will be 

overseeing sign installation. 

 

The signs are exempt from a City sign permit because they are for roadways and will be 

placed in the public right-of-way. They are directional and instructional, without 

commercial advertising.  

 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE:  May 16, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development and Communications 

Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: Bids for Way-finding Sign Fabrication & 

Installation 

 

  

  

Bids No. 3 - Revised 

Deleted: May 13, 2016



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Bids for Visitor Way-finding Signs 

Page 2 of 3 

 

The tentative timeline from here forward is as follows: 

1. May 20-27 (date to be determined) – Special City Commission meeting for 

consideration of contract approval 

2. 6 weeks for sign production and installation with substantial completion by July. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Bid summary, recommendation of award, contract and supporting 

documents 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Two bids were received by the opening date and time of May 13 at 

11 a.m. CT. The bids are as follows: 

 Mann Signs, Bismarck, N.D. — $79,200 with a bid for the alternate of $1,022. 

 Color-Ad, Manassas, Virginia — $99,836 with an alternate deduct of $1,705 

 

Note: A bid from Geograph Industries, Harrison, OH, was received after the opening and 

is being returned with a lettering indicating it was too late to open. 

 

These bids are well within budget. A maximum of $250,000 was approved for the project 

from the Visitors Promotion Capital Construction Fund which is generated with the 1 

percent city restaurant and lodging tax for this project. Visitor promotion funds must be 

used in accordance with N.D. Century Code 40-57.3-02 for ―tourism or the purchase, 

equipping, improving, construction, maintenance, repair, and acquisition of buildings or 

property consistent with visitor attraction or promotion.‖ The contract for design and 

construction administrative services with Berberich Design is for $55,985 with 

reimbursable expenses estimated at $3,200 and not to exceed $4,800.  

 

This should put the total project at no more than $141,007. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Staff time is necessary for project direction and oversight. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All information will be forwarded to Attorney Brown for review 

including the proposed contract.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  We recommend approval of the low bid submitted by Mann 

Signs for a total contract price of $80,222. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the low bid submitted by Mann Signs for a 

total contract of $80,222. 

Deleted: .

Deleted: If the City Commission approves the 

award of bid, a contract will be prepared for 

Commission review and consideration.

Deleted: in the amount of $79,200 with the 

alternation option of $1,022

Deleted: in the amount of $79,200 with the 

alternation option of $1,022



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Bids for Visitor Way-finding Signs 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

May 16, 2016 

Ellen Huber 

Business Development Director 

City of Mandan 

205 2nd Avenue NW 

Mandan, ND 58554 

Re:  Mandan Wayfinding Signs Project 

Dear Ellen:  

Re: Recommendation of Award 
 

Bids on the referenced project were opened on May 13, 2016. A total of three (3) bids were 

received. One (1) bid was received late and was not opened. We are returning that bid to the 

bidder. The remaining bids were checked for mathematical accuracy and no discrepancies were 

found. A complete tabulation of all bids received is attached. 

The low bidder is Mann Signs of Bismarck, ND and we recommend a contract be awarded to 

them for base bid and add alternate one for a total contract price of $80,222.00. 

We are returning all bid bonds and original bid forms for filing. The bid bonds should be 

returned to the bidders once the formal contract has been awarded.  

  



 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 

We are attaching the Notice of Award for your approval. Please sign and return this form to our 

office. We will send it to the contractor for their signature and then return a copy to you for your 

records. We are also attaching the City’s contract form with the appropriate information 

completed. After your attorney’s review and approval, we will forward the contract to Mann 

Signs for their signature. 

If you have any questions, please contact our office. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

KLJ 

Brett Gurholt 

Landscape Architect 

Enclosure(s):  City Contract Form, Notice of Award to Mann Signs 
Project #:  1616103 
cc: Ray Berberich, Berberich Design 



ND 5/1/09   Section 00510 - Page 1 of 1 
 

Notice of Award 
 

 Date:  5-16-16 
 

Project: City-Wide Vehicular Wayfinding Signs 

Owner: City of Mandan Owner's Contract No.: NA 

Contract: Base Bid + Alternate 1 Engineer's Project No.: 1616103 

Bidder: Mann Signs, Inc. 

Bidder's Address: 

1507 Continental Ave. 

Bismarck, ND 58504 

 You are notified that your Bid dated 5-12-16 for the above Contract has been considered.  You are the 
Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for Base Bid and Alternate One (add). 

See bid form for quantities and sign types. 

 
 The Contract Price of your Contract is Eighty Thousand Two Hundred Twenty Two Dollars ($80,222.00). 

 

 3 copies of the proposed Contract Documents (except Drawings) accompany this Notice of Award. 

 3 sets of the Drawings will be delivered separately or otherwise made available to you immediately. 

 You must comply with the following conditions precedent within [10] days of the date you receive this Notice 
of Award. 

  1. Deliver to the Owner [2] fully executed counterparts of the Contract Documents. 

  2. Deliver with the executed Contract Documents the Contract security [Bonds] as specified in the 
Information for Bidders  

  3. Other conditions precedent: 
  Schedule a brief preconstruction conference with Owner and Designer. 

    
 Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in default, 
annul this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited.   

 Within ten days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully executed 
counterpart of the Contract Documents. 

         
  Owner 
   
  By:   
  Authorized Signature 
    
          
  Title 
 
Copy to Engineer 
 



Letter of Transmittal
Date: May 16, 2016

To: Ellen Huber

Business Development Director

City of Mandan

205 2nd Avenue NW

Mandan, ND 58554

Copy To: File

From: Brett Gurholt, PLA

Re: Mandan Wayfinding Signs Project

Project #: 1616103

We Are Sending You:

Attached Under Separate Cover As Requested

Prints/Plans For Your Information For Your Review

Specifications For Your Signature Samples

Other 

Shipped via: Email

Copies (#) Description

1 Contract and supporting documents

Remarks

Ellen,

Please find the contract and supporting documents for the above mentioned project with 

Mann Signs, Inc.

Feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns.

Thanks!

Brett Gurholt, PLA



� � � � � � � �� � � � � 	 � 
 
 � 
 � � � �  � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � " # � � � � � � � � � � � � " � $ $ �  � � � % � � � � � � " � � � % � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �� � � � � � � � � � � " � $ $ �  � � � % �  � � � % #& � � � 
 � � 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � �  � � � �  � � � � � � � � � " � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � ! � � �� � � � $ $ �  � ' � � � � � ( 
 � ) � � � * 
 � + & � � ,� � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � $ $ � - � � � � � � $ $ � � � � � . � � � � � � $ � � �  / � � � � � . � $ $ � � � � �  � � 0 � � " � � � � � � � �� � �  � � � � � �  � �  � � ! � � �   � � " � � � �  � � � � � / $ � � � � �  � � � � � � � � $ �  � 1 2 3 4 5 6 2 7 8 9 8 : 2 1 ; < = >6 = 4 ? 2 @ 7 2 @ A B 2 A @ B / � � / � � �  � � C � � � � � � " � D � � � ! � � � " � � � ! � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � " �D � " - . � � � � � � � $ �  � � � % D � � � ! � � � % � � �  � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � $ $  � � E � � � � � � � ! � � F - � � �  � � � � � �� ! � � � . � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � " � D � " - . � � � � #� � � � � ( 
 � ) � � � � 
 � � 
 � 
 � � � � D � � � * ( 
 � � � � � + & � � ,� � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � $ $ " � . . � � " �  � � 0 � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � �  � � � � � � � � / � " � � � �  � � �  � � � � � �� �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � D � 0 � � � � � �  � � � $ $ � - $ $ � " � . / $ � � � � $ $  � � 0 � � F - � � �  � � $ � � � � � � � �G - $ � � � � � � � #
 H � � � � � � � � � � � . � . � � � � ! � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � �  � $ � � �  � � � � � � � . � � � � � � / � � ! � � � �� � � � �  � � 0 � � � � � � " � � � � � ! $ � " � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � . / $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � �� . / $ � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � " � � � ! � � � �  � � �  � � � � �  � � 0 � � � � � � � � � 0 � � � $ � " 0 � - � � � � � � � � � - � - � - � $ � $ � � � � � � � � � / � � � � � � � � � - � � E � �  � � $ � " � � - � $ � � � � � � � � � " � - � � � � � � � �  � � � " � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � �� � � �  � $ � � � - � � � � � I �  � � � � � D � � � ! � � � � � � � � " � - � �  � � " � � � � D � � � ! � � � � � � $ $  � � � � . � � � � � J - � � � � �� � �  � $ � � # � � � � - " � � H � � � � � � � � � � � . � � � � $ $ � � � H � � �  �  � � � � - " � � � � � � � � � $ � � � . � � � � � � D � � � ! � � �. � �  � � � � . � � � � � � � � � ! � � �  - / � � � � � � � �  � � � #� � � � � ( 
 K ) � � 
 � � � � � � � � � L �� � � �  � � � � � � $ $ / � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � / � � � � � . � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � " " � �  � � ! � � � � �� " � �  - $ � � � � / / � � H � . � � � F - � � � � � � � � � �  � � � - � � � / � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � " � � �  � � � � � � �  � � � . � � � � �� " " � / � �  / � � / � � � $ � � � � " � �  � � � � � � � � � � � ! ! � � ! � � � � �  � � " � � � M N � � � � � # � � O C � � � C �  P � $ � � � � � � � Q# � � � � � ( 
 R ) * � S � 
 � � �� � � � � � � - � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � " � . � � � � � � � � � � / � � " � � � � � � � � E � $ - � � � � $ � � � � � �  . � � � � � � $ �� � " � � / � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � 0 � � � �  - / � � � � � - � � � / � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � " � � �  � � � � � � " " � / � � / � � / � � � $ � � � ! � � � � �  � � � � � � � � E � � " �  " � � � � � � � � . � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � " � � / � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � 0 � � � - � � � � $ � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � 0 � � $ � " � $ � � � � � ! � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ $ � � / � �  � � � � �� � � � � � " � � � � � � * � � ! � � � � * � � . � � � # � � � D � � � ! � � � � � � $ $ / � � / � � � � �  � - � . � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �� � " � � � � � �  � " - . � � � � � � � � � � � � - " � * � � ! � � � � * � � . � � � #

T U V W



& � � � � � � . � � � � � � � E � $ - � � � � � �  � � 0 � � � � � � � " � � � � $ � " � . / $ � � �  � �  � " " � / � �  � F - � $ � � �� H " � �  � � � � � � / � � " � � � � � � � � " � � � � � �  � " � � �  � � � � � � " $ � K � � � � � � � � - � � � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � � � � . � � � � . � - � � � � � � $ $  � � " � � � � � - � #+ - � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � ) � � E � / � � " � � � � � � � �  � � 0 � � " � . / $ � � �  - �  � � � � � � � � . � � � � � � � �� � � � � � " � D � " - . � � � � � � . � � � - � �  � � � � � / � � ! � � � � / � � . � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � E � / � � " � � � � � � � �� . � - � � � � � � � � � �  � � � $ $ � � / � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � - " � � F - � $ / � � . � � � � � � � �  � $ $ / � � . � � " � . / $ � � � � � � - $ $ / � � . � � � - / � � � / / � � E � $ � �  � " " � / � � � " � � � � � �  � � 0 � �  . � � � � � � $ � � - � J � " � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � . � $ � � � � � - � � � " � � � - � $ � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � " � D � " - . � � � � #� � � � � � E � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � � � � $ � � � � � ! $ � " � � � � � � � - � �  � � � � � � � �/ � � E �  �  � � � � � � � � � � / � � � �  � � . � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � . � � �  � � � � � � - " � � � � � . � � � � � " � . / $ � � � � � � � � � � � ! � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � ! � / � � / � � $ � / � � � � $ � � � - " � � � � � � � . � � � � � � $ $  � �  � � � � � � � � � � � . � � � � � � � � � � � � . � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � H / � � " � � � O � X Q / � � � � � - . - � � � $ � � � � � � - � � " � � � � / � � / � �  � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � - " � � � � � � � � � � � � $ $ � � " � . / - � �  � �  �   �  � � � � � � � " � � � � � �  � � � � . � � � � � � � � $ / � � . � � � � �� � � � � � � ! � � � � � � � � � " � $ � ! � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � �  � � � $ $ � � � � " $ -  �  � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � �  � �  � #+ � � � $ / � � . � � � � � � $ $ � � . �  � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � �  � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � $ " � � � � � � " � � � � � � " " � / � � � " � � � � � � � � / � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � D � � � ! � � � #� � � � � ( 
 Y ) � L � * 
 � � � � � � + & � � ,� � � �  � � � � � � $ $ � � E � � � � � � ! � � � � � - � / � �  � � �  � � 0 - �  � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � . � � � " � - � �� � � . / � � / � � " � � � � � - " � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � � . � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � � . � � � �  � �� � " � � � � � - " � � � � � � � � � / � � � � � � � � . / � � / � � $ � " � � � � � - " � �  � � $ $ � � � " " � �  � � " �  � � � � � � / � � E � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � " � D � " - . � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � - � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � D � 0 � � � #� � � � � ( 
 � ) � D D � � � � � � ( & � � ,� � � �  � � � . � � � � � . � � . � � � � � . �  - � � � ! � � � � / � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � " � � �  � � �   � � � � � � $ � � 0 � � � � � � � . � " � � � � " � � � � � � � / � � � � � . �  " � . / $ � � � !  � � � � � � � � . � � � � . � � �  " � �  � � � � � �" � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � " � D � " - . � � � � � � $ � � ! � � � � � � � . � � � � $ $ � � � � H " � �  �  � � � � / � � " � � � � � � � �� . � - � � / � � � � $ � � � � � � � . � � �  � � � � � � " � � � � � " �  � � 0 � �  � " � � �  � � � � � � " $ � K / � � " �  � � ! #� � � � � ( 
 Z ) 	 L � � � � � 
 
� � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � $ $ ! - � � � � � � � � � �  � � 0 � ! � � � � �  � � � " � � E � . � � � � � � $ � �  � � - $ � �  � � 0 . � � � � � /� � � � / � � � �  � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � $ � " " � / � � � " � # � - " �  � � � � � � � � � � $ $ � � � H / $ � " � � $ �� � � � � � � � � � � � � * � � � � � . � � " � C � �  � - � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � #



� � � � � ( 
 N ) 	 
 � 
 � � ( ( � � C � ( � � S� � � �  � � � � �  � � � � � / � � � � � � � � � E � � � � � $ $ � � � � E �  � � � . $ � � � � � � . � � � ! � � � � � $ $ � � � � $ � � � - �  � �� � � � � � . � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � �  � � 0 / � � � � � . �  - �  � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � �  � � � / � � E � � � � � �/ � � � � � � � � ! � � � - " � $ � � � � $ � � � � � " � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � " � D � " - . � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � - � � � � � � $ $ / � � E � � $ #� � � � � ( 
 [ ) � � � � � � � � D � � L � 
 � � �� � � � � � � � � " � D � " - . � � � � � � � $ $ " � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ $ �  � � ! " � . / � � � � � / � � � � '� # �  E � � � � � � . � � � � � � � �  � #� # � � � � � . � � � � � � � � � �   � � � #K # + � " � � . � $ � " � / � � � � " " � / � �  / � � / � � � $ #R # 	 - � � � � � � � �  � � F - � � �  � � � - � � � " � #Y # � � � � � � " � #� # * � � � � � . � � " � � � �  #N # D � �  � � ! � � �  � � � � � � � � $ �  \ ] � � � � & � � � � �  � � ! * � � J � " � ^ * � � � � � _ D � � � ! � � � � � � � ` � � �  � / � � $ � � � � � � � #� � � � � � � � � - . � � � � � � ! � � � � �  � � � � � �  � " - . � � � � � � � � � � � � � E � . � � � � � � �  � � � � . � � � � � � � � � " �� �  � � � � � � � � � � - $ $ � � / � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � �  � � � � � � � � � � / � � � �  # � � � � � � E � � �� � � � � � � / � � E � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � . / � � � � � / � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � " � � � $ � " � �  � � � � � � / � � E � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � " � . / � � � � � / � � � � � � � / � � E � � � � � � � � � � " � . / � � � � � / � � � � � � � � � � - . � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � $ $! � E � � � � � H " � / � � � � � � � �  � � � � / � " � � � " � $ $ � � � � � �  #� � � � � ( 
 � � ) 
 a � 
 � D 
 D � � � � � � L � � � � � � � � 
� � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � $ $ / � � � � � � � �  � � � � - . � � F - � $ � � � � � �  . � � � � � � � � � E � " � � � � � � - / � � E � � � � �� �  � � � / � " � � � � " � � � � � � � � " � $ " � � � � � �  � - " � � � � � � " � � � �  � � � " � $ � � � $ � � �  � � � � � / � � J � " � � � � � � � ! � � � . � � �" � � � � � - " � � � � � � � � � H � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � . � � $ $ � " � � �  � � � " � . . � � " � . � � � � �  " � . / $ � � � � � � � � � � � � 0 � � � �  � " � � �  � � � � � � " $ � � � � � � � � � � � E � � � � � " $ -  � � � �  � � E � � � � � H � � � � � � � � � � � � . � � � � � . � �� � E � � � � � ! � � � � �  # � " � � � � � - " � � � �  � � � � � $ $ � �  � � � � . � � �  � � � � E � � ! � � � � � / � � �  � � � � � � " � �  �� � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � E � � / � � � � � E � � � - � � � � � . � � � � � � � � � � � � / � � � � " - $ � �  � � � � � � � / � � � � " - � � � � � � � H � " - � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � H " $ - � � E � � � . � " � � � � � � � � / � � � � �  . � � � � � � � � " � � � . � # � � � / � � . � � � �� � � � � � � � � E � � � � $ $ � � / � �  � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � � � . � � �  � " � � �  � � � " " � - � � ! � � � � �/ � � J � " � � � � � � " �  � � � H � � �  � � ! � � � � �  � � � � � . � � � � / - $ � � �  � � � ! � � � � �  � � �  � � E � � � � � � H � � � � � � � � � � � �� " " � . / $ � � � � � ! � �  " � . / $ � � � � ! � � �  � � 0 # � � � � � - . � � � $ $ � � � � � $ � � � � � � � M Y � # � � / � �  � � #



� � � � � ( 
 � � ) D 
 + 
 � � � _ 
 & � � ,+ � � $ - � � � � � � J � " �  � � � " � � E � . � � � � � � $ � � �  � � - $ � �  � � 0 . � � � � � / � � � � � 
 � ! � � � � � � � � $ $ � � �� � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � . $ � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � $ - � � � � � � � / � � � � � / � � � � � . � � �  � � 0 � � � - � � � � � � � �. � � � � � � $ � � � � " " � �  � � " �  � � � � � � � � � � � � " � D � " - . � � � � #� � & � � � 
 � � & � 
 � 
 � + � � � � / � � � � � � � � � � � � � � E � " � - � �  � � � � � � � � � - . � � � � � � � � H � " - � �  � ��  � � � � ! � � � $ " � - � � � � / � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  . � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � E �  � � � � � � #� � - � � � � � � ! � �  ' b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b bb b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b bb b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b� � � � � � ' � � � S � + � � � D � �C SG � . � � � � - � � - � � � � $ � � _ � � C � � 0� � � � �  . � � � � � � � � � � * � � � �  � � �C � � �  � � � � � � � � . . � � � � � � � � �O � 
 � ( Q



BID FORM - CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA - VEHICULAR WAYFINDING DES IGN

The undersigned proposes to provide all labor, materials, equipment, supervision , coordination and
all related incidentals needed to furnish, fabricate , and install the proposed Wayfinding Signage
Program.

Drawnby.' RS

This d ocu ment I ~ the sc le property of
Ekrb(.'1'1(1'l D,,~lgn , Inc•• und ell dr"wing 'ttl:
pro lcct,,-d und er US co pyrig ht 1.:Jw. Th(!
rep rod uc tion, re use olnd :..11('5 righ ts
r~,)rtlin9 the dr.lwlngs o1nd d~igns hereIn
ate cKprcs:.ty Icrblddcn, It I'S svbmtrtcd
unde r 01 co nflde nll.l l reL1uomh lp. fat 01

special pur pose • .lnd the rt'Clp lent, by
ace....p llng thrs do cum ent :;h.., n nol be
cop ledorh:produc~lnwholo: otln p<trt,

nor lu conh.-n15 1l!\,I(,.:lIt.-d In OI nY m.1nnc ror
10 .lnv person el ce pt for th e pur po se for
which It Wol:' tcndCR' d , nor <tny :;pe<loll
featu res pcc uli.lr to th iS d~19n be
soccrpoc ted tncther prolects,

Tho :01(.' purpose of .111 dr.1wlngs I ~ to
cxpress VI'.iUdl dt''.iilJn in lc,'R1 only .:md not
intended rcr actual f.lbrlCJtlon purposes.
n,c ~19n r.1b rltuta tls l .)"d / ar tant~etor(5 )
.l cccph to l,)1 re~pans lblllty fa r a ll fmOJI
s....lcctcd mct cncl s, I,'ngln........rln9 ml: thod s,
folb rkoltlo n methods. pe rm ltUng olnd
In~t.Jlloltion . ShOp drnwlng s and pl.Jn sheets
,:m~ req uuc d to be s(".Jkod and slgnl"d by u
NorthDolkotu f'l'9l~tc f't'd PE.

Date: 04/21 /20 16
Revisions:

Client Contact :
Ellen Huber, CEeD
Business Development &
Communicat ions Director
Off ice 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW,
Mandan, ND 58554

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular
Wayfinding

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn .com

I.Di( 1------ - ----- - -
r, '- _

Date: S - (J -Ib

The business address to which the Notice to Proceed may be mailed, emailed, faxed or otherwise
delivered:

Contact:
Email:
Phone:

VOLUNTEEREDALTERNATES
Any volunteered alternates may be submitted with the bid form, based on the use of the products
equivalent or better in quality and lor performance as spec ified. List any voluntary alternates
separately and attach to the bid form. Provide the following information for each voluntary
alternate: ' .
1) Name of manufacturers and I or suppliers
2) Detailed description of the alternate to include all product and warranty data, material, finishes
and availability
3) Reason for proposing the voluntary alternate
4) Change in price

:~BMI~~ 5

It" ~futel'ui VVIoN1a~AI\...------ _

AWARDED CONTRACT
The contract will be awarded to the firm whose proposal conforms to the solicitation and will be
most advantageous to the CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA with price and other evaluation
factors considered. The CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA reserves the right to reject any and
all proposa ls received and reserves the right to waive any informalities to negotiate with the select 
ed Fabricator I Vendor. This project may be subject to phasing. If phasing occu rs, this issue will be
resolved and negotiated with the selected Fabricator

fA BRICATION COST;

INSTAl lA TION COSy

GRA!)JPTOTAV

701-35"5"-1/1/ontact Information:

INSTALLATION'ESTIMATED I EAD-T!ME rDAyS) 14 De., 'i S

SIG N TYPE DESCRiPTION ..QUA NT ITI ES UNI TQQ.SIS ~E.tlD_E~

11 2455 27,0 S-VEH1.00 Vehicular Direct ional (Small)

~g..par-kiflg-l€lefltifi€atieA (Not Used)
0

VEH3.00 Vehicular Direct ional (Large)

410 it;; 5d , lct S-
(NOTE: BIDDER NEEDS TO VERIFY ALL QUANTITES)

13

ALTERNATES
Refer to sheet 002 - General Specification c-Bid Spec ifications> Alternates.
1. Provide lump sum alternate pricing for .100" aluminum to replace 6mm composite aluminum.

ADD - I,Q~a DEDUCT -

FABRICATION' ESTIMATED LEAD-TIME roAyS ) d 5 ~~"t S

In accordance with the bid documents submitted by the CITY OF MANDAN'A:9%H DAKOTA
dated 5-1;)-/1;. and including all associated addenda numbere~ thru . .' inclusive,
for an all-inclusive Base Bid for the Wayfinding Signage Program to Include but not limited to all
incidental costs for shop drawings, engineering, permitting , permit fees, samples , and shipping .
Installation costs shall be submitted as a lump sum fee at the end of the bid form and shall not be
included in the unit or extended costs.

Bid Form

~'001 .-- ....
----- - .. --



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider bids for visitors way-finding sign fabrication and 

installation.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The City Commission at its April 19, 2016, 

meeting approved extending a request for bids for shop drawings, fabrication, permitting, 

shipping, and installation of multiple vehicular way-finding signs, posts, break-a-way 

bases, and other incidental work at 24 locations throughout the City of Mandan.  

The purpose of the proposed signs is to provide direction to visitors for various 

attractions and destinations as well as a sense of community branding and character. 

 

Public notices of the request for bids were published in the Bismarck Tribune on April 

22, 29 and May 6 and in the Mandan News on April 22 and 29 as well as on the City’s 

website and through the Quest Construction Data Network. 

 

Project consultant Berberich Design previously received tentative approval of the sign 

package proposal from the N.D. Department of Transportation with final approval to 

come once the package is bid out and the fabricator produces engineered shop drawings 

that are signed and stamped by a professional engineer. Co-consultant KLJ will be 

overseeing sign installation. 

 

The signs are exempt from a City sign permit because they are for roadways and will be 

placed in the public right-of-way. They are directional and instructional, without 

commercial advertising.  

 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 13, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development and Communications 

Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: Bids for Way-finding Sign Fabrication & 

Installation 

 

  

  

Bids No. 3 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Bids for Visitor Way-finding Signs 

Page 2 of 3 

 

The tentative timeline from here forward is as follows: 

1. May 20-27 (date to be determined) – Special City Commission meeting for 

consideration of contract approval 

2. 6 weeks for sign production and installation with substantial completion by July. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Bid summary. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Two bids were received by the opening date and time of May 13 at 

11 a.m. CT. The bids are as follows: 

 Mann Signs, Bismarck, N.D. — $79,200 with a bid for the alternate of $1,022. 

 Color-Ad, Manassas, Virginia — $99,836 with an alternate deduct of $1,705 

 

Note: A bid from Geograph Industries, Harrison, OH, was received after the opening and 

is being returned with a lettering indicating it was too late to open. 

 

These bids are well within budget. A maximum of $250,000 was approved for the project 

from the Visitors Promotion Capital Construction Fund which is generated with the 1 

percent city restaurant and lodging tax for this project. Visitor promotion funds must be 

used in accordance with N.D. Century Code 40-57.3-02 for ―tourism or the purchase, 

equipping, improving, construction, maintenance, repair, and acquisition of buildings or 

property consistent with visitor attraction or promotion.‖ The contract for design and 

construction administrative services with Berberich Design is for $55,985 with 

reimbursable expenses estimated at $3,200 and not to exceed $4,800.  

 

This should put the total project at no more than $141,007. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Staff time is necessary for project direction and oversight. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All information will be forwarded to Attorney Brown for review. If 

the City Commission approves the award of bid, a contract will be prepared for 

Commission review and consideration. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  We recommend approval of the low bid submitted by Mann 

Signs in the amount of $79,200 with the alternation option of $1,022. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the low bid submitted by Mann Signs in the 

amount of $79,200 with the alternation option of $1,022. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Bids for Visitor Way-finding Signs 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



                                              

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value 

for Travis & Debbie Toepke.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   This parcel is also known as Parcel #65-4000900 

Lot 1 Block 1 Ol’ Town Addition Replat of Lots 1, 2, & 3 Block 1.  

 

Reason for abatement:  To correct the 2015 Values to reflect the split of the newly 

constructed twin homes that were completed in July 2015. The builder/owner of this 

property pulled the building permit for a twin home in November 2013, filed the Plat in 

February 2014, completed construction in July 2015, sold each side and then had the twin 

homes separated. So when we set values in February of 2015, this was still one parcel and 

received the full value of the property. In August 2015 when this was officially separated 

Side #1 & Side #2 each were given values, but side #1 (this parcel) still had the full value 

on it, and should have had changes to reflect the same value as side #2.  

2015 Values;  Side #1; Land-$13,500  Side #2; Land-$10,500   

              Structure- $328,700     Structure- $177,600 

               Total- $342,200     Total- $188,600 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    Property Record Sheet, Copy of Tax printout showing 2015 value, 

Property Record of other twin home showing the correct value for 2015, Copy of 

Building permit, and inspection Record, Plat 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Approximately $1,707 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 4, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing  

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw 

SUBJECT: Corrected 2015 Value – Travis & Debbie Toepke 

 

  

Consent No. 2 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 2 of 20 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend a motion to approve to lower the true and full 

value for the 2015 year for Travis & Debbie Toepke.   

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  A motion to approve a reduction for the Travis & Debbie 

Toepke property for the 2015 assessment year.  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 3 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 4 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 5 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 6 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 7 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 8 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 9 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 10 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 11 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 12 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 13 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 14 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 15 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 16 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 17 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 18 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 19 of 20 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Consider a correction in 2015 True & Full Value for Travis & Debbie 

Toepke.  

Page 20 of 20 

 
 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider approval of the Main Street ADA Curb Ramp 

Improvements Cost Participation, and Maintenance (CPM) Agreement. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The DOT annually identifies and addresses 

corridors in the state that are not in compliance with the most recent ADA standards for 

handicap accessibility. There has been ongoing planning to make those improvements to 

the east side of Mandan’s Main Street with construction this year. The west side of 

Mandan’s Main Street was done in 2015.  

 

In order for the DOT to bid this project through their system, a requirement of receiving 

funding, the CPM Agreement must be agreed to. The CPM Agreement lays out which 

entity is responsible for each task of the project and is a standard DOT agreement.  

 

The CPM agreement for this project was originally brought before commission in 

December. The DOT had revisions since then that justified reissuing the CPM which is 

now ready to be executed.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1) CPM Agreement 

   2) Risk Management Appendix 

   3) Funding Summary Appendix 

   4) Project Cover Sheet with Map 

  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Given the classification of the corridor as being on the Secondary 

Regional System, the cost share for the city is 10%, which is estimated to be $77,267 as 

described on the Funding Summary Appendix. City sales tax fund to pay for that local 

share.    

 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 13, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, 

CPM Agreement 

 

  

Consent No. 3  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, CPM Agreement 

Page 2 of 12 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 

for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements Cost 

Participation and Maintenance (CPM) Agreement. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the Main Street ADA Curb Ramp 

Improvements Cost Participation and Maintenance (CPM) Agreement. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, CPM Agreement 

Page 3 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, CPM Agreement 

Page 4 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, CPM Agreement 

Page 5 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, CPM Agreement 

Page 6 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, CPM Agreement 

Page 7 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, CPM Agreement 

Page 8 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, CPM Agreement 

Page 9 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, CPM Agreement 

Page 10 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, CPM Agreement 

Page 11 of 12 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, CPM Agreement 

Page 12 of 12 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider allowing temporary road closure at Red Wing Drive on 

July 8-10 from 8 am to 8 pm each day.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: Our office received a request by the Mandan Mandan 

Soccer Club to allow them to close Red Wing Drive SE for the “Mandan Soccer Splashdown” 

event to be held July 8-10 between 8am-8pm each day.  More details are attached on the request 

letter. The closure would not affect any access to nearby properties, it would just prohibit the 

through traffic within the shown section of Red Wing Drive. The organizer checked with six of 

the closest neighbors and there were no objections by any of them to allow this temporary 

closure. It will be up to the event organizers to properly sign and barricade.     

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1) Mandan Soccer Club Closure Request with Map  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal     

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Our office recommends approving the temporary closure.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve closure of the shown section of Red Wing Drive 

from 8am-8pm on July 8-10.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 13, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Mandan Soccer Club Road Closure Request 

 

  

Consent No. 4  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016  

Subject: Mandan Soccer Club Road Closure Request 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: Consider sale of the following City of Mandan property 

through public auction, sealed bids or trade in value: 

 

 1992 and 2001 Patriot Mobil Athey Sweepers – both sweepers have become 

obsolete and cannot justify making costly repairs. We have some spare parts for 

these sweepers and could possibly be utilized by a smaller community that has 

these types of sweepers. 

 1994 Ford Pickup – Landfill pickup that cannot meet safety inspection and 

would be too costly to repair.  

 2002 Chevy Van – old meter department van.  I have contacted other 

departments and if someone can use it, we will not try to sell. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The listed equipment/vehicles have been replaced or are no 

longer mechanically sound.  By City of Mandan Ordinance, items with an estimated value of 

over $1,000 require City Commission approval to sell.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: picture of items 

  

FISCAL IMPACT:  Revenue could go back into the General Fund to offset some equipment 

repairs 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal  

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A   

  

RECOMMENDATION:  Recommend allowing sale of the listed equipment/vehicles through 

public auction, sealed bids or as a trade in. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to allow the sale of the listed equipment/vehicles through public 

auction, sealed bids or as a trade in. 

 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 13, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright, Director of Public Works 

SUBJECT: Consider sale of City of Mandan property with an 

estimated value over $1,000. 

 

  

Consent   No. 5 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject:  Consider sale of City of Mandan property with an estimated value over $1,000. 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 



IConsent No. 61

emOF MANDAN
1. Typeof license being applied for:

StreetDance:
Beer Gardens: -----
Both:_L-__

2. Applicant:

Name: .JIW1}0a,l1, ~/3.1"'!!;j-'V./YJ l2.g,,:r<!llli~!J._:b;71._L /}'rp.!?~.9~':''' ~ _Jl~fg{:.~~_. B+J~:!!_~;J.~
Address: ~ll __ 0ML.t\"-';<L S~~c· .__. _.__..
_.__... fV\A~t;-l ,"\,\, p ~~J.~H ._~_. __.__ ...__. ...~-~ ....---
Date ofBirth:

3. Nameofindividualor individuals who willmanage or conduct the event:

Name: _I>..LL\J.d:5.,l_.... ._~_
Address: 41\ We, St ~,:\;,.,l. _.~-, .---,----_.--- ----_.. ,.

Date of Birth:
8.S. orD.L.:

Name: __ ll,r;;EI'.\ ~r::.g:\Vl ......d-:.. .. . _
Address: __.._~_'d.i..~~~_~_i~
Date of Birth:
8.S.orD.L.

4. Have anyof the individuals 'listedin answerto questions#2 & #3 ever had a license of any kind revoked
or cancelled by any municipal, state of federal authority:
____yes X No. If yes, explain in detail on a separate sheetgiving thedale, place and type of
business.

5. Have any of the individuals listed in answer to questions #2 & #3 everbeen convicted of any crime
relatingto the sale of alcoholic beverages or controlledsubstances: Yes X No. If
yes, explainin detail on a separatesheet giving the date, placeand type of business.

6. Ifyoushould be applying for a public dance or concertpermithas anyof the individuals in answer to
questions #2 & #3 beenconvicted within thepast five yearsof anycrimeagainstpersons, including
assault, disorderlyconduct, sexual assault, rape and murder._.. Yes X No.Ifyes,
explainon a separatesheet.

7. List theplace, date andhours of the proposedevent (specialnote, all applications must be received 30
days in advance of the proposed event). _})'/l.<5koO(l.rJ PA~ J.LL~lLLL·...t;L 261 ta. _
________J Uf',iJi.. _1./ ~ :l)()\' H +0 \2: 00 M; ch.. ;.jl--Y __,~ . ._~_~__.__-r-- _

____._~~ \\-.00 r:tN. ~ 5:00 P.M.. __

_._-_._._..._~- ---,..._---_.~--_._~_..._-------

8. Site Plan: See attached sheets,

A. Beer Gardens
B. StreetDance



9. Pleaseprovide an estimate of the number ofpersons that theperson conducting the eventhas determined
can besafety accommodated at the site and also estimate of the number of personsexpected to attend:

Maximum Capacity30QQ __
Expected Attendance_L-S-'l.Q. . _

10. Is there going to be advance ticketsates? Yes . No-X- _

If yes, please list the maximum amount to be sold: _. .. . .

11, Whatplans are there to limitattendance if thereare no advance ticket sales, ~~ _
_ ..s~~uivtL b~-\.;~!..-..L0.Q:~_cl:~""'j b_~E~iM~ sk£.£ _

._--...._._------
---_._-_._-..--------_.._--_..-

12. Pleaselist the number and provide on the siteplan the placement of sanitary toilet facilities:

Number of toiletfacilities .LI'-l-'--__-Ll:W~f.7

13. Has theCityHealth Officer reviewedyour plan to determine if yourproposed toilet facilities are adequate
tomeet the attendance?

Yes _~_~_~ No _

14, Fencing & Barricadesshould be supplied on site plan.

15. List belowa description of the signingwhich is proposed to control pedestrian and vehiculartraffic,
parking and notices to thepersons in attendance. . ..,_. ,__._.,.__..__._.__,__. '.
_u~ll:....<L..L)l-__i;J!~!<s.'V}c'l.&J~L~Q(,.'"_,L,}.5~,'"H,;"" __S::)~~.~ i (\,~~i:J.':~~-L.-c..!J.::¥-~£,\}.~~ L~\5..... ,

--_.. --.__._-,--,-------

16, Security: Do intend to use private security or city police officers.

Private .._~__._ CityPolice, _

17. List thenumber of securitypeople you plan on using. Street dances provide for the use of policeofficers:

Private__l-__ CityPolice . _

18. StreetDances & Concerts: Have you enclosed fees for the charges for citypolice officers?
- ~ t,l" "'"amount_'jQ, , .

/":
~~S£t~~ ----------,---
Signatureofapplicant
MO'J\~ l1-tl. 2.ot:0 ~ __,,__...__ ,__

Date

List the

Telephone number
---_._----._--





ern'OF .MANDAN
1. Type of license beingapplied for:

StreetDance: ---
Beer Gardens:---
Both:_~__.. __. .

2. Applicant:

, C~·

N arne: .. ~h1:\.v2l~1lL\:l~'>.Gj~t.s.L_~W~~nrl"v~[rL~oJLJ.i!L\~_~ -n~M~,,,:ttr.'(.L__\\t&,!;L\l~.A~J;n.:.~.Q ~)f )1

Address: ......J:ill_\cl.UL.ll!1.LtL&t__...__... '~""_"" __""""""""'__ ""'_" '_'_"''''''''~ ...._._~. ..
._ __ __._~{ltID}bL. N.D.__'i'1~5.L/ . .. __ .
Date ofBirth:
Social Security or Drivers License: ~~--

3. Narneof individual or individuals whowill manage or conduct the event

Name: tSP~ h\tl~,-- .. .......
Address: Ii II wJt J'f\!1'n:=! St.
Date ofBirth:
8.S. or D.L.:

Name: .. ,10m,;) G.n.M~h
Address: __ .._I1~Lj..0.~~1= ..r.1~ ...._

Date of Birth:
S.8. or D,L. _ .._..... _._._ __

4. Have any of the individuals 'listed in answer to questions #2 & #3 everhada license of anykindrevoked
or cancelled by anymunicipal, state of federal authority:
___'yes ~_No. Ifyes, explain in detail on a separate sheetgiving the date, place and type of
business.

5. Have any ofthe individuals listed in answer to questions #2 & #3 everbeenconvicted of any crime
relating to the sale ofalcoholic beverages or controlled substances: Yes X. No. If
yes, explainin detail ona separatesheet giving the date, place and type of business.

6. If you should be applying for a public dance or concertpermithas anyof the individuals in answer to
questions#2 & #3 beenconvicted within the past five yearsof anycrimeagainst persons, including
assault, disorderlyconduct, sexual assault, rape andmurder. Yes x... __No.Ifyes,
explain on a separatesheet.

7. List theplace, date andhours of the proposed event (specialnote, all applications must be received 30
days in advance of the proposed event). . .... .. _.~~_..~_
--l\Llc~fl&L_L2,_---D:-f-h$.hOO,,,."LE~~~._.:I::~R.~L:bL.J.LQc-.P. N. _ . .
..~~........~__--Ch.ttL'iha-.\4'<--__.fl\i)Jt... .._lI_·~..AJ:.\.....l'9.-.-..J.2_~@_\.'0c;~~,jhL__ ._~ ._.__ ._. .

.....~~-..-._--

8. Site Plan: See attached sheets.

A. Beer Gardens
B. Street Dance



9, Pleaseprovide an estimate of the number of personsthat the person conducting the event basdetermined
can be safetyaccommodated at the site andalso estimateof thenumber of personsexpected to attend:

Maximum Capacity __3.Q(){L~~__.
Expected Attendance Z.OQQ~ _

10. Is theregoing to be advance ticketsales'?

Ifyes, please list the maximum amount to be sold: . ~_~ __..__ ._. _

11. Whatplans are there to limit attendance if there are no advance ticket sales, ~.liJ.I.~ "",J. .
.u_~..t."" ... _...t.!·iiM:>~.tl!:6..ty _ ..... . _

---'--'---~ ._------
._-----_..- ...__.._-- .... _... - ......._._-------

12. Please list the number and provideon the site plan the placement of sanitary toilet facilities:

Number of toilet facili ties-1-'"g_--::t~>I=d%"1-'- .__3 'l.:",.k ~

13. Has the City Health Officer reviewed yourplan to determine ifyourproposed toilet facilities are adequate
to meet the attendance?

14. Fencing & Barricades should be suppliedon site plan.

15. Listbelow a descriptionof the signingwhich is proposed to control pedestrian and vehicular traffic}
parking and notices to thepersons in attendance. ---C.\.t<.l.~k\22i.t,l!l_.ti\b.__t-=-r:Wl.b.l..:....,-.S?-~r.---- .. ~c.
__ c_.J~\:.~:l.:l~'!j.;,~.~(.b.(.!.o.~.11":U,,b---.S.ia~l{t_r~~'-~------~-.---~.--.._~~ _. ~~5!__.. ~_~__..._

________._._._. .....C ...~~ •• •• _ •••• • .c.... ... • _

16. Security: Do intend to useprivate securityor citypolice officers.

Private .....:b__.__ CityPolice ,,__.._._._

11. List the number of securitypeople you plan on using, Streetdances provide for the use of police officers:

Private_1~ .CityPolice .__. __.c ••

18. StreetDances & Concerts: Have you enclosed fees for the charges for citypolice officers? List the
amOlmt~()Oo .

_C_". ~Q..J:l~JJ.__._.__c__

Signatureof applicant
__._. ~d-L.zl_~J.@_ ...__._..__ ... _
Date

.f'~... ._".~~._._~~~~ ,__ ~,

Telephone number



---~--_.

'1)V('1~S"lrJ .__._.~ --.--



• t emOF MANDAN
1. Type of license being applied for:

StreetDance:---
Beer Gardens:---
Both:~~ _

2. Applicant:

----_._---._.~.-._-_..-._-

3, Name of individual or individuals who willmanage or conduct the event:

Name: -._.Q~~J~~fs.<..b . .__...._
Address: _lUl \.c0-"",,,,r_~~t{.,,;<LS!:....__Hf\::'\DJlJ.__
Date ofBirth:
3,S.orD.L.:

Name: _
Address: ...__ .. ..__... .....
Dateof Birth: .... . _
8.S.or D.L. ._. ..._ .. . _

4. Have anyof theindividualslisted in answer to questions #2 & #3 everhada license of anykindrevoked
or cancelled by anymunicipal, state of federal authority:
-:---...,...-__Yes y..., No. Ifyes, explain in detail on a separate sheet giving thedate, place andtype. of
business.

5. Have any of the individuals listed in answer to questions #2 & #3 everbeenconvicted of anycrime
relating to the sale of alcoholic beveragesorcontrolled substances: Yes x. No. If
yes, explain in detail ona separatesheet giving the date, placeand type of business.

6. If you shouldbe applying for a public danceor concert permithas anyof the individuals in answer to
questions#2 & #3 been convicted within the pastfive yearsof anycrimeagainst persons, including
assault,disorderly conduct, sexual assault, rapeand murder. Yes X No. IfY0S~
explain on a separatesheet,

7. List the place, date and hours of the proposedevent (specialnote,all applications mustbe receivec!30
days in advance ofthe proposed event)..._.Q.y!:i.lhta.tL,-L_Hu.\~~Ld.q•.-;;lQl.L-.U:.:.a.Q~J\1....::.b-lQ:cQP.J:t.
------_._,----_.._~~----_._-----------_.

----_.__.__..._--_._--------

8. Site Plan: See attached sheets.

A. Beer Gardens
B. StreetDance

'--'-'-'--'-'-'-~- , ..---_...-.



9. Pleaseprovide an estimate of the number of persons that the person conducting the e-vent hasdelem:dned
can be safety accommodated at the site and also estimate ofthenumber of persons expected toattend:

Maximum Capacity ~_ ..
Expected Attendance 12=qt,,-,-,,-) _

10. Is there going to be advance ticketsales? yes No.X.__ ._~__~_.

If yes) please list themaximum amount to be sold: ._.

11. What plans are thereto limit attendance if thereareno advance ticket sales, -.-5..'l.Q.~1~J')~L.----_.-
_._.tA.''.<'I(..'.:l~_i;;''U'L:...eu",Q..._'/''1.==.;;t;,~._~'::J~.¥0.!.::t(>,,,=,,_~.d . -

12. Please list the number and provideon the siteplan the placement of sanitary toiletfacilities:

Numberoftoilet faciIities..-la. I bd"f-2~

13. Has the CityHealth Officer reviewed yOW' plan to determine ifyourproposed toilet facilities are adequate
tomeetthe attendance?

14. Fencing & Barricades should be suppliedon site plan,

15, Listbelowa description of thesigningwhichis proposed to control pedestrian andvehicular traffic,
parking and ~otices to the persons in attendance. -L':[r\...~-,......-c..n.LYJ.6..'J.:b.Qa-"---r-f:ud.."J'IL<~"".
------.5-liP~QZt'!.-····-· ....----_....--~- .. -.~._.. --_.-....

..•_-----_.__..._~, ...._-..._---_._---

16. Security: Do intend to use privatesecurityor citypolice officers.

Private h __... City Police _

17, List thenumber of security people you plan on using. Street dances provide for the useofpo1ice officers:

Private_ ...~L_~_ CityPolice _

18, StreetDances & Concerts: Have you enclosed fees for the charges for citypoliceofficers? List the
amount )1)20 M. > •

~-----..~.__.-

{'\.--. \ -~- I
~_.d~JL_w.u~CLL-.._,__..._~.~_._~_

Signature of applicant

~~~.'MJ ..f.-=---------.----
Date

Telephone number





IConsent NO.7

emOF MANDAN
1. Type of license being applied for:

Street Dance: __~"_

Beer Gardens: ....X"'--__
Both: _

2. Applicant:

Name: (~?1h1 ~
Address: I 'too jl)

/1/1?1 J/f:,0
Date of Birth: _ ._
Social Securityor Drivers License:. . '"

3. Name ofindividual01' individuals who will manageor conduct the event:

Name: i..1 !4 fi1.,;4 y C- f--
Address: '
Date ofBirth: .
S.S. or D.L.:..

Name: ,;::rp ~ 6d ~0 /

xddress: _~. -
Date ofBirth:
S.S.orD.L.

. 4. Have any of the individuals listed in answer to questions#2 & #3 everhad a license of anykind revoked
or cancelledby ~ny municipal, state of federal authority: .
____yes K No. Ifyes, explain in detail on a separatesheetgiving the date,place and typeof
business.

5. Have any of the individuals listed in answer to questions#2 & #3 ever been convicted::any crime
relating to the sale ofalcoholic beveragesor controlledsubstances: Yes K No. If
yes, explain in detail on a separate sheet giving the date, place and type of business.

6. Ifyou should be applying for a public dance or concert permit has anyof the individuals in answer to
questions#2 & #3 beenconvictedwithin the past five years of any crimeagainstpersons, including
assault, disorderlyconduct, sexual assault, rape and murder. Yes ')(.. No. Ifyes,
explain on a separatesheet.

7. List the place, date andhours ofthe proposed event (special note, all applications must be received30
days ip advanceofthe pro~osed event). /1/1:ndlb{ I 1f1/'7. 1-0 If! /'7 h1
$A--~~ ",1~/¥ 2

1
,go/,

8. Site Plan: See attached sheets.

A. Beer Gardens
B. Street Dance



9. Pleaseprovide an estimate of the number of persons that the person conducting the eventhas determined
can be safetyaccommodated at the site and also estimateof the number of pel'sons expected to attend:

Maximum Capacity-...,2.""-~-,,,,"()=- _
Expected Attendance....J""'-51"-'M'-- _

10, Is there going to be advance ticketsales? '\Tes No X.I. ~ _

If yes,please list the maximum amount to be sold: ~__

II. Whatplans are there to limitattendance if there are no advance ticketsales, _
'ft fdc-tz.rs go Id. ® Yoe>'!t- ~

12. Please list the numberand provide on thesite planthe placement of sanitary toilet facilities:

Number of toilet faciHties--lL.., _

13. Has the City Health Officer reviewed yourplan to determine if yourproposed toilet facilities are adequate
to meet the attendance?

Yes No
----- ---f----"---

14. Fencing & Barricades should be supplied on site plan.

15. List below a description of the signing which is proposed to control pedestrian and vehicular traffic,
pat:ld~g and notices to thepersons.in attendance. :5 cf /JA.
c.t «-I CILr; s S .J:") IJ- !--It- s ..... fr/tJ-~ Sy;-yz..z,.ci.> /-- -,g;1:J Q....;C£ « V;T1 e.

I

16. Security: Do intend to useprivatesecurityor citypoliceofficers.

17. List the numberofsecurity people you plan on using. Streetdancesprovidefor the use ofpoliceofficers:

Private 1!P: CityPolice e---=""----

Date

- ..._---~------
Telephone number

List the



A. SITE PL~N FOR BEER GARDEN APPLrC~TrON:

Please provide a site plan which details the exact placement of the beer garden,
lighting and other electrical equipment, pUblic seating, toilet facilities, fencing
or other barricades, parking t marked fire lanes, and the proximity of public roadway,

p~.



/(f

'"" 1... ,-,



IConsent No. 81

)(' \

5/~!/~~,Lftw
,&$/Jd? &tJd'~

($10.00 per day, per event)Street Dance

Beer Gardens

Type of license being applied for:

o
o
~ Both

1. Applicant I /

Name:~ bpv~ ,
Address: / t? () C"d~_.LZ.J. ~~""'-'=--'--_---,.d0-L.!.~~-"'---_~---"'-..:...z...__-

I

i>?iii
CITY OJ'

MANJ)AN
"'Wm.n... THIo: Wli:!LT FlCa-lIlo."

Date of Birth: __~

Social Security or Driver's license Number: _

2. Name of individual or i ividuals who will manage or conduct the event:

Name: ~

vO
Address: _

Name: ::'«/4,.0..-

Address: fi /. b&X S'J
/

Date of Birth: _ Date of Birth: _

SSN It or DLtI: ~~.~. SSN # or DL#: _

3. Have any of the individuals listed in answer to Questions #1 & #2 ever had a license of any kind revoked or cancelled by

any municipal, state or federal authority? If yes, explain in detail on a separate sheet, providing the date, place and type of

business. 0 Yes 91 No

4. Have any of the individuals listed in answer to Questions #1 & #2 ever been convicted of any crime relating to the sale

of alcoholic beverages or controlled s~ystances? !fyes, explain in detail on a separate sheet, providing the date, place and

type ofbusiness. 0 Yes ({} No

5. If you should be applying for a public dance or concert permit, have any of the individuals in answer to Questions #1 &

#2 been convicted within the past five years of any crimes against persons, including assault, disorderly conduct, sexual

assault, rape and murder? if yes, exp!!l!n in detail on a separate sheet.

DYes p No

----------------------------------------
All applications must be received 30 days in advance

7. Site Plan: Seeattached sheets.



8. Please provide an estimate of the number of persons that can be safely accommodated at the site and also an estimate

of the number of persons expected to attend:

Maximum Capacity:

Expected Attendance:

9. Will tickets be sold in advance? DYes ~'No

If yes, please list the maximum amount to be sold: _

10. Ifthere are no advance ticket sales, what are the plans to limit attendance? _

11. Please list the number and provide the on-site plan for the placement of sanitary toilet facilities:

Number of toilet facilities: :£:e:t-~tf Ve::tf!,t#zt'~
12. Hasthe City Health Officer reviewed your plan to determine if your proposed toilet facilities are adequate to meet the

attendance? 0 Yes ~No

13. Fencing and barricades should be supplied in the on-site plan.

14. Describe the proposed signing to control pedestrian and vehicular traffic, parking and notices to those in attendance.

D CityPolice

15. Do you intend to use private security or city police officers?

9fPrivate

16. Ust the number of security personnel you plan on using. Street dances require the use of police officers.

Private _",---_ CityPolice _

.~../1
Signature of applicant

V··";2 t -' /

17. If the event is a street dance or concert, have you enclosed the fees for t e charges for city police officers?

list the amount: '-=--d

Date

Telephone number



A. SITE PLAN FOR BEER GARDEN APPLICATION:

Please providea site plan which detailsthe exactplacement of the beergarden, lightingandother

electrical equipment, public seating, toilet facilities, fencingor other barricades, parking, marked fire lanes

andthe proximity of public roadways.



*Note: Emergency exit in
fencing directly behind bars

o
A
N
C
I
N
G

Silver Dollar Bar
Street Dance Site Plan

SILVER DOLLAR
BAR

SEATING
AREA



IConsent No. 9i

GAMING SITE AUTHORIZATION
OFFICE OFATIORNEY GENERAL
SFN 17996(0212016)

G - - L __)_
SiteLicense Number

(Attorney General Use Only)

Full. Legal Name ofGaming Orqanlzatlon H R N rth 0 k torse ace 0 a 0 a

The above orqanlzatlon is hereby authorized to conduct games of chance under the license granted by the
Attorney General of the State of North Dakota at the following location

Name of Locatlon Moscow Bar

Sfreet City !ZIPCOde County
Morton202 E. MainStreet Mandan 58554

Beginning Date(s) Authorized 7/1/16 Ending Date(s) Authorized 6/30/17 Number of lwenty·one
0tables irzero. enter·0":

Specific location where games of chance will be
conducted Jlilll played at thesite(required) Games will be prayed in bar area, excluding the reetroorns.

If conducting Raflle orPokeractivity provtde date(s} or month(s) ofevent(s) if known

RESTRICTIONS (City/County Usa Only) To be completed ONLY if restrictions are set by the localgoverning body

Days ofweek of gaming operallons IHours ofgaming

ACTIVITY TO BE CONDUCTED Pleasecheck all applicable games to be conducted at site
r-- r-- ..----
~

Bingo
I-

Club Special Sports Pools
I-

"'-
ELECTRONICQuick Shot Bingo

I-- Tip Board
I--

Twenly-One

'"'-
Raffles

I-- Seal Board Poker
l-

I-- ELECTRONIC 50/50 Raffle
I- Punchboard caicuuas

t--

tR
Pull TabJar

I- Prize Board Paddlewheelswith Tickets
Pull Tab Dispensing Device '-- Prjze Board Dispensing Device i-

PaddlewheelTable---
APPROVALS

Attorney General Dale

Signature of City/Counly Auditor Date

PRINT Name andofficial posnton ofperson Signing onbehalfofcily/counly above

INSTRUCTIONS:
1. City/County Auditors- Retain a copy of the SiteAuthorization for your files,

2. City/County AUditors - Return the original SiteAuthorization formto the Organization,

3. Organizations - Send the original, signed, SiteAuthorization to the Qfficeof Attorney Generalwithany
other applicable licensing formsfor final approval.

RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS TO:

Office ofAttorney General
Licensing Section
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 125
Bismarck, NO 58505~0040

Telephone: 701-328-2329 OR 800-326-9240



RENTAL AGREEMENT
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN 9413(Rev. 08-2015)

License Number (Office UseOnly)

Site Owner (Lessor)

Victoria Luchkina
SiteAddress

202 E. MainStreet ICily

Mandan

SileNama

Moscow Bar
State IliP Code
NO 58554

SitePhone Number

county

Morton

-

Organization (Lessee)

HorseRaceNorth Dakota IRental Perioel

7/1/2016 to 6/30/2017 Monthly RenlAmount

1. ts Bingo goingto be conducted at thissite?
1a. It ·Yes"10 number1 above, is Bingo theprimary gameconducted?

If "Yes," enterIhe monthly rentamount to be paid. 'tnen answerquestions 2 • 1 but donot
enter anyrentamounts.

2. Isa rame drawing goingto be conducted at this site?

3. ts Prize Boards involving a dispensing deviceconducted at thissite?

[KJ No

D No

IKI No

[RI No

DYes

DYes

DYeS

DYes

$

$

$

4. Is Twenty-One conducted at this site?

Number of Tables with wagers LIp to $5 X Rent per Table $

Number of Tables with wagersover $5 X RenlperTable $

5. Is Paddlewheels conducted at this site?
Number of Tables X RentperTable $

6. IsPull Tabs involving eithera jar barandlora dispensing deviceconducted at thissite?

Please check: 0 Jar BarOnly @ Dispensing Device Only D Jar Barand Dispensing Device

TERMS OFRENTALAGREEMENT:

IKl No DYes $

$

[RJ No D Yes $

D No IKl Yes
$ 175.00

Total Monthly Rent

$ 175.00

This RENTAL AGREEMENT Is between theOwner(LESSOR) and Organization (LESSEE) Chat will be leasing thesite to conduct games of Chance.

The LESSOR agreesthatnogamewill be dIrectlyoperated as partof the lessor'S business.

The LESSOR agrees that the (lessor), (lessor's) spouse, (lessor's) common household members, (management), (managemenl's) spouse, or an
employee of the iessor who is in a position to approve or deny a leasemaynot conductgamesatanyof the organizatiOF'l's sitesand,except for officers and
boardof directors members whodidnot approve the lease,maynot playgames at thatsite, However, a baremployes may redeem a winning pUll lab orprize
boardsinvolving a dispensing <leviceandsell raffieticketsor sportspool cnences on aboardonbehalfof an organization.

The LESSOR agreesthat the lessor's on call Of temporary or permanent employee wi!]not, directly or indirectly. conduct games at the siteas an employee of
the lesseeon the sameday the employee is workingin the areaof thebarwherealcoholic beverages are dispensed or consumed.

If the LESSEE provoes the Lessorwilh a temporary loanof funds for redeeming puntabsor prizeboards. or bOlh, involving a dispensing device, tM Lessor
agrees to repay the entire loan Immediatelywhen the lesseediscontfn uasusing the device at tlte site.

The LESSOR agreesnot to Interfere with or attemptto influence Ihe lessee's selection of games. determination of prizes, including a bingojackpot prize, or
disbUrsemenlofnetproceeds.

TheLESSOR agreesnotto loanmoney to, providegaming equipment to, or Count dropboxcash10rthe tessee.

At the LESSOR'S option,the lesseeagreesthaI this rentalagreement maybe automalicalfy terminated if the lessee's gaming license is suspended at lhissite
for more thanfourteen daysor revoked.

, /

Signature of Lessor~

Slgnatre ~~ee~Executiv~OffiClal)
v-..... 77~P'1tf

'\ Dale

OZj~/k'

(over}



Iconsent No. 9ii

GAMING SITE AUTHORIZATION
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
SFN17996(02/2016)

G- L~_)_

SiteLicense Number
(Attorney General Usa Only~

FUll, Legal Nameof Gaming Organization H R N rth D k torse ace 0 a 0 a

The above organization is hereby authorized to conduct games of chance under the license granted by the
Attorney General of the State of North Dakota at the following location

Name of l.ocation Strawberry Bar

Sfreet 210 W. MainStreet City l" Code
County

Mandan 58554 Morton

Beginning Date(s) Authorized 7/1/16 Ending Oale(s} Authorized 6/30/17 Number of twenly-one
0taotes ifzero, enter "0";

Specific location wheregames of chance will be
conducted.s!.Il!i played atthe site(required) Gameswill be conducted in bar & restaurant area,excluding the restrooms.

Ifconducting Raffle or Pokeractivity provide date(s) or mon!h(s} of event(s} if known

RESTRICTIONS (City/County Use Only) Tobe completed ONLY ifrestrictions are set by the local governing body

Days of weekorgaming operatlons IHours of gaming

ACTIVITY TO BE CONDUCTED Pleasecheckall applicable games to be conducted at site
.-- .-.- ....-
10-

Bingo
I-

Club Special Sports Pools
ELECTRONIC QuickShot Bingo to-

I-- I--
Tip Board Twenty-One

Raffles Seal Board
I-

Poker10- l- I--
I- ELECTRONIC 50/50 Raffle r- Punchboard CalcuUas

10-
'-

PullTab Jar
i- Prize Board Paddlewhaels with Tickets

~ PullTabDispensing Device Prize Board Dispensing Device
I--

I..- Paddlewheel Table
'--

APPROVALS

Attorney General Dale

Signature of City/County Auditor Date

PRINTName and official position ofpersonsigning on behalfof city/counly above

INSTRUCTIONS:

1. City/County Auditors - Retain a copy of the Site Authorization for your flies.

2. City/County Auditors ~ Return the original Site Authorization form to the Organization.

3. Organizations - Send the original, signed, Site Authorization to the Office ofAttQrney General with any
other applicable licensing forms for final approval.

RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS TO:

Office of Attorney General
Licensing Section
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 125
Bismarck. NO 58505~0040
Telephone: 701~328-2329 OR 800w326-9240



RENTAl.. AGREEMENT
OFFICE OFATIORNEY GENERAL
LlCENSlNG SECTION
SFN 9413(Rev. 08-2015)

License Number (Office UseOnly)

Site Owner (Lessor) SiteName SitePhone Number

Strawberry, LIe StrawberrY Bar - .
SiteAdclress ICity Slate IZip Code Coumy

210 W. Main Street Mandan NO 56554 Morton
organization(Lessee) IRentalPeriO(! Monthly Rent Amount
HorseRace NorthDakota 7/1/2016 to 6/30/2017

1. Is Bingogoingto be conducted at this site? ~ No 0 Yes
1a. If "Yes" to number 1above,is Bingo theprimary game conducted?

D
$

If "Yes," enterthe mOfJ!hly renl amount10be paid. Thenanswerquestions 2 - 7 but do not No 0 Yes
enter anyrent amounts.

2. Is a raffledrawing goingto be conducted at thissite? @ No 0 Yes $

3. IsPrizeBoards involvinga dispensing deviceconducted at lhis site? IRJ No 0 YeS s
4. Is Twenty-One conducted at this site?

lEI DYes $
Number of Tables withwagersup to $5 X Rent per Table $ NO

Numberof Tables withwagers over $5 X RentperTables $

5. Is Paddlewheels conducted at this site?
IRJ 0Number of Tables X Rentper Table $ No Yes $

6. IS PIll!Tabs Involving eilhera jar bar andlora dispensing deviceconducted at thisSite? 0 No ~ Yes

Please Check: 0 Jar BarOnly @ Dispensing DeviceOnly D Jar serand Dispensing Device
$ 75.00

Total Monthly Rent

$ 75.00

TERMSOF RENTALAGREEMENT:

This RENTAL AGREEMENT is betweenthe Owner(LESSOR) and Organization (LESSEE) thatwill be leasing thesite to conduct games of chance.

The LESSORagreesthat no gamawill be directlyoperated as part of the lessor'sbusmess.

The LESSOR agrees that the (lessor), (lessor's) spouse, (leSSOr's) common household members, (management), (managemenl's) spouse. or an
employee of the lessorwho is in a positionto approveor deny a leasemay not conduct gamesat any of the organization's sitesand.exceptfor officers and
boardofdirectorsmembers who did not approvethe lease.may not playgamesat thatsite. However, a baremployee mayredeem a Winning pull taborpnze
boardsInvolving a dispensing deviceandsell raMa Uckets or sportspoolchances on a boardon behalfof anorganization.

TheLESSOR agreesthat the lessor'soncallor temporary or permanent employee wilt not, directlyor indirectly, conduct gamesat the site as anemployee of
the lesseeon the sameday lhe employee is workingin theareaof the barwherealcoholic beverages aredispensed or consumed,

If the LESSEE prOvides the Lessorwith a temporary loanof funds for redeeming pUll tabsor prizeboards,or both, involving a dispensing device.the L.essor
agrees to repay the entire loan Immediately when the lesseo discontinues using the device at the site.

The LESSOR agreesnot to interferewith or attemptto inRuence the lessee's selection of games,determination of prizes. including a bingojackpot prize. or
disbursement of netproceeds,

The LESSOR agrees no! to loanmoneyto, providegamingequipment to. orcountdropboxcashfor the Jessee.

At the LESSOR'S option, the lesseeagrees that this rentalagreement maybe automatically terminated if the lessee'S gaminglicense is suspended at thissite
formore thanfourteen daysor revoked.

SlgnalureofLess~ Tille Date
04'~ . Y-:W/I~...---._...

Slgnatu(:-;~f~V~ -- Tille PftS\~"
Date

(p -r.,-~ __~ ~ if Lf-/J'-j6
(over)



IConsent No. 10i
·GAMING SITE AUTHORIZATION
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
SFN 17996 (02/2016)

G- L __)_
Site License Number

(Attorney Goneral Use Only)

Full,Legal Name of Gaming Organization Fort Abraham LIncoln Foundation

The above organization is hereby authorized to conduct games of chance under the license granted by the
Attorney General of the State of North Dakota at the following location

Name of Locauon Lonesome Dove

Street 3929Memoria! CitYM d ZIP Coda 58554 county
Mortonan an

Beginning Date(s) Authorized 7/1/16 Ending Date(s) Authorlzed 6/30/17 Number of twenly-one 3
tables if zero. enter"0":

Specific location where games of chance will be
Whole bar area except bathroom and entranceconducted.9ml played at lhe site(required)

If conducting Raffleor PokeracUvily provide date(s)or monlh(s) of event(s) if known

RESTRICTIONS (City/County Use Only) To be completed ONLY if restrictions are set by the local govemfng body

Days of weekof gaming operations Hoursof gaming

ACTIVITY TO BE CONDUCTED Please check all applicable games to be conducted at site

1l Bingo
...- r--...... I-

Club Special

~
Sports Pools

- ELECTRONIC Quick Shot Bingo - TipBoard Twenly-One
Raffles :---- Seal Board Poker- -

)l
ELECTRONIC 50/50 Raffle - Punchboard Calcuttas
Pull Tab Jar

.....
Prize Board Paddlewheels with TicketsX - -PullTab Dispensing Device Prize Board Dispensing Device Paddlewheel Table"'-- - -

APPROVALS

AttorneyGeneral Date

Signature OfCity/County Auditor Date

PRINTName andofficiat position of person signing on behalfof city/county above

INSTRUCTIONS:

1. City/County Auditors - Retain a copy of the Site Authorization for your files.

2. City/County Auditors - Return the original SiteAuthorization form to the Organization.

3. Organizations - Send the original. signed, SiteAuthorization to the Office ofAttQrne3: General withany
other applicable licensing forms for final approval.

RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS TO~

Office of Attorney General
Licensing Section
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 125
Bismarck, ND 58505-0040
Telephone: 701-328-2329 OR 800-326-9240



RENTAL AGREEMENT
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN 9413(Rev, 08·2015)

Ucense Number(OfficeUse Only)

Site Owner (Lessor) Site Name Site PhoneNumber
Lonesome Dove Inc. Lonesome Dove (701) 663-2793

Sile Address ICity State IZip Code COllnty
3929 Memorial Highway Mandan NO 58554 Morton

Organization (lessee.) IRental Period
Monlhly RentAmountFortAbraham Lincoln Foundtion 7/112016 to 6/30/2017

1. Is Bingo going to be conducted at this site? 0 No [Rl Yes
ta, If "Yes" to number 1 above, is Bingo llle primary game conducted? $

If "Yes," enter lha monlhly rent amount to be paid. Then answer questions2 - 7 but do not 00 No 0 Ves
enter any rent amounts.

2. Is a ramedrawing going to be conductedalthis site? [R] No 0 Ves $

3. Is Prize Boards involving a dispensingdevice conducted at this sile? 00 No 0 Yes $

4. Is fwenty-One conducted at this site?

0 1RI Yes $
Number of Tableswith wagers up to $5 X Rent per Table $ No

Number of Tableswith wagers over $5 3 X Rent per Table$
300.00 $ 900.00

5. Is Paddlewheelsconducted at !his site?
[Rl DNumber of Tables X Rent per Table $ No Yes $

6. Is Pull Tabs involVing either a jar bar and/or a dispensing device conductedalthis site? 0 NO IR] Ves
$ 325.00

Please check: 0 Jar Bar Only o Dispensing Device Only lEI Jar Bat and DispensingDevice

Total Monthly Rent

$ 1,225.00

TERMS OF RENTALAGREEMENT:

ThisRENTALAGREEMENT is belween Ihe Owner (LESSOR) and Organization(LESSEE)Ihat will be leasing the site to conductgames of chance.

The LESSORagrees that no game will be directlyoperated as part of the lessor'sbusiness.

The LESSOR agrees that the (lessor), (lessor's) spouse, (lessor's) common household Members, (management), (management's) spouse, or an
employee of the lessor who is in a position to approve or deny a tease may not conduct games at any of the organization's sites and, except for officers and
board of directors memberswho did not approve the lease, may not play games at thai site. However, a bar employeemay redeema winningpull tabor prize
boards involving a dispensing device and sell raffle tickets or sports pool chances on a board on behalf of an organization.

The lESSOR agrees lhat the lessor's on call or temporary or permanent employee will not, dIrectly or lndireclly,conduct games at the site as an employee of
the lessee on the sameday the employee is working in the area of the bar where alcoholic beveragesare dispensedor consumed.

If the lESSEE provides the Lessor with a temporary loan of funds for redeeming pull tabs or prize boards, or both, involVing a dispensingdevice, the Lessor
agrees to repay the soUle loan Immediately when the lessee discontinues using the device at the site.

The LESSOR agrees not to inlerfere wIth or attempt to influence the lessee's selection of games, determinationof prizes, including a bingo jackpot prize, or
disbursementof net proceeds.

The LESSOR agrees not to loan money to, provide gaming equipment to, or count drop box cash for the lessee.

At the LESSOR'S option, the lessee agrees that this rental agreement may be automatically terminatedif the lssses's gaming license Is suspended allhis site
formore than fourteen days or revoked.

-,'

si~rfbf~/L'/' TiU~£ ~ Ie_. /$_. ~,~~~ . :~~ /f4<'-'),7 ..' .' ,

Sig-t:of Lessee (TopExeculive Official) Tille Date

~ ,(b.A. I .~""~ FJ<.~(~""~ '})\V'(:.~ eft)~ /2/J/ to
(ow'!r)



IConsent No.1 Oii I
GAMING SITEAUTHORIZATION
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
SFN 17996 (02/2016)

G- L __)_
SiteLicense Number

(Attorney General Use Only)

Full. Legal Nameof Gaming Organization Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation

The above organization is hereby authorized to conduct games of chance under the license granted by the
Attorney General of the State of North Dakota at the following location

Name of Location Seven Seas

Street 2611 Old Red Trail Cit IZIP Code 58554 County
Y Mandan Morton

Beginning Date(s) Authorized 7/1/16 Ending Date(s) Authorized 6/30/17 Number of twenty-one 2tables Ifzero, enter "0":

Specific location where games of chance will be
Whole bar area except bathroomconducted SillQ played at theslte (required)

If conducting Raffle or PGker activity provide date(s)or month(s) of event(s) ifknown

RESTRICTIONS (CityfCounty Use Only) To be completed ONLY jf restrictions are set by the local governing body

Oays of weekof gaming operations Hours of gaming

ACTIVITY TO BE CONDUCTED Please check all applicable games to be conducted at site
r-- r-- .....-
f--

Bingo
!--

Club Special Sports Pools
;-- ELECTRONIC Quick Shot Bingo - Tip Soard ~ Twenty-One

Raffles ~
SealBoard Poker- - -

)l
ELECTRONIC 50/50 Raffle Punchboard Calcuttas
Pull Tab Jar - -Prize Board Paddlewheels with Tickets...... - r-

- Pull Tab Dispensing Device _ Prize Board Dispensing Device Paddlewheel Table
""-

APPROVALS

Attorney General Date

Signature of Cily/County Auditor Date

f' RINT Nameandofficial position of person signing onbehalfof city/county above

INSTRUCTIONS:
1. City/County Auditors ~ Retain a copy of the Site Authorization for your files.

2. City/County Auditors - Return the original SiteAuthorization form to the Organization.

3. Organizations ~ Send the original. signed, Site Authorization to the Office ofAttorney General withany
other applicable licensing forms for final approval.

RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS TO:

Office ofAttorney General
Licensing Section
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 125
Bismarck, ND 58505w0040

Telephone: 701-328-2329 OR 800-326-9240



RENTAL AGREEMENT
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN 9413 (Rev. 08-2015)

license Number (OfficeUseOnly)

Site Owner(Lessor) Site Name SitePhone Number
Baymont Inn And Suites Seven Seas Bar &Grill (701) 663-7401

SiteAddress ICity Slale IZiPCOde County
2611 Old Red Trail Mandan ND 58554 Morton

Orqanization (Lessee) IRental Period
Monthly RentAmountFort Abraham Lincoln Foundtion 7/1/2016 to 6/30/2017

1. Is Bingogoing to be conducted at thissite? 00 No 0 Yes
ta, If "Yes"to number1 above, is €lingo theprimary gameconducted?

[R] $
If "Yes,"enter themonthlyrent amount to be paid. Then answerquestions 2 - 7 but do not No D Yes
enter any rent amounts.

,2. Is a raffledrawinggoing to be conducted at this site? [Rl No 0 Yes $

3. Is PrizeBoardsinvolvinga dispensing deviceconductedat thissite? 00 No 0 Yes $

4. Is Twenty-One conducted at thissite?

D 00 Yes $
Numberof Tables with wagersup to $5 X Rent per Table $ No

Numberof Tables with wagersaver $5 2 X Rent per Table $ 75.00 $ 150.00

5. Is Paddlewheals conductedat this site?

00 D $X Rent per Table $ No Yes
Numberof Tables

6. Is PullTabs involvingeithera jar bar andfor a dispensingdeviceconductedat this site? D No IRI Yes
$ 100.00

Pleasecheck: f:i] Jar Bar Only o Dispensing DeviceOnly o JarBar and DispensIng Device

Total Monthly Rent

$ 250.00

TERMS OF RENTALAGREEMENT:

This RENTAL AGREEMENT is betweenthe Owner (LESSOR)and Organization (LESSEE) thatwill be leasing(hesite to conduct gamesof chance.

The LESSORagreesthat no game will be directlyoperated as part of the lessor's business.

The LESSOR agrees that the (lessor), (lessor's) spouse, (lessor's) common household members, (management), (managemenl's) spouse, or an
employeeof 1he lessor who Is In a positionto approveor deny a lease may not conductgames at any of the organIzation's sites and, exceptfor officers and
boardof directors members who did not approve the lease, may not play gamesat that site. However, a bar employee may redeem a winning putl tab or priz:e
boards involvIng a d!spenslng deviceand sell raffle tickets or sports pool chanceson a board on behalforan organization.

The LESSORagrees lhat Ihe lessor'son call or temporaryor permanentemployeewill not, directlyor indireclly, conduct gamesat the site as an employee of
the lessee on the sameday 1he employeeis worklng in the areaof the bar wherealcoholicbeverages are dispensed or consumed.

If the LESSEEprovides the Lessorwith a temporaryloan of rundsfor redeeming pull tabs or prize boards, or both, involvinga dispensing device, the Lessor
agrees to repay the entire toan immediately when the lessee discontinues usIng the devIce at tile site.

The LESSORagreesnot to Inlerferewith or attempt to influence the lessee's selection of games, determination of prt-:es, including a bingojackpotprize,or
disbursementof net proceeds.

The LESSORagreesnot to roanmoney to, providegaming equipment to,or countdropbox cash for the lessee.

At the lESSOR'S option, the lessee agrees that this rental agreementmay be automatlcally terminated if the lessee'sgaming licenseIs suspended at thissill;)
for more than fourteen days or rsvoked.

~ r>;
Signt/~)~:. Tilte&}1. Datel

A ~ 4 »ila.V"

Signate f Lesse~culive Official) Title DaM I

/~~ ~ G"l(.<!. CIA1\ve V.«cV D'l!I1> //(,



IConsent No. 10iii I
GAMING SITE AUTHORIZATION
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL
SFN17996 (02/2016)

G- L __)_
Site License Number

(AttorneyGeneral Use Only)

FUll, Legal Nameof Gaming Organization Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation

The above organization is hereby authorized to conduct games of chance under the license granted by the
Attorney General of the State of North Dakota at the following location

Nameof Location Midway Lanes

Street 33327 Memorial
Cil ZIP Code 58554 County

YMandan Morton

8eginning Date(s) Authorized 7/1/16 Ending Date(s) Authorized 6/30/17 Number of twenly·one 1tables if zero. enter"0";

Specific location where games of chance will be
Whole bar area except bathroomconducted .I!lli! played at the site (required)

If conducting Raffle or Poker activityprovide date(s}or monlh(s}of event(s) if known

RESTRICTIONS (City/County Use Only) To be completed ONLY if restrictions are set by the local governing body

Days of weekof gaming operations Hoursof gaming

ACTIVITY TO BE CONDUCTED Please check aU applicable games to be conducted at site

1l Bingo
........ r--

...... ~
Club Special

~
SportsPools

,...- ELECTRONIC Quick Shot Bingo
10-

TipBoard Twenty-One
Raffles

0.:.;.

Seal Board Poker- ~ -
K

ELECTRONIC 50/50 Raffte Punchboard Calcuttas- I-Pull Tab Jar Prize Board Paddlewhaefs with Tickets)( - 10-
Pull TabDispensing Device Prize BoardDispensing Device Paddlewheel Table;",:,.;,.. - "'"-

APPROVALS

AUorney General Date

Signature of City/Counly Auditor Date

PRINTNameand official position of personsigningon behalfof city/collnty above

INSTRUCTIONS:

1. City/County Auditors - Retain a copy of the SiteAuthorization for yourfiles.

2. City/County Auditors - Return the original Site Authorization form to the Organization.

3. Organizations ~ Send the original, signed, SiteAuthorization to the Office of Attorney General with any
other applicable licensing forms for final approval.

RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS TO:

Office of Attorney General
Licensing Section
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 125
Bismarck, NO 58505~0040
Telephone: 701-328-2329 OR 800-326-9240



RENTAL AGREEMENT
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN9413(Rev. 08-2015)

License Number (Office Use Only)

(over)

..
SiteOwner(Lessor) Site Name ~ Site Phone Number

MidwavLanes Kingpin (701) 663-0277
SileAddress ICIty State IliPCode County

3327 Memorial Highway Mandan NO 58554 Morton
OrganJ.zaUon (Lessee) IRentalPeriod Monthly Rent Amount
Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation 7/1/2016 to 6/30/2017

1. Is Bingogoing to be conducted at this site? 0 No [R] Yes
1a. If "Yes"lo number1 above, is Singothe primary gameconducted? $

If "Yes." enter the monlhlyrentamountto be paid. Then answerquestions :2 ·7 butdo not D No 0 Yes
enler anyrent amounts.

2. Is a raffledraWing goingto beconducted atthis site? rRJ No 0 Yes $

3. Is Pri.ze Boardsinvolving a disp.ensing deviceconducted at this site? [R] No D Yes $

4. IsTwenty-One conducted at this Site?

0 @ $
Number of Tables withwagers up to $5 X Rent per Table $ No Yes

Numberof Tables with "lagersovor $5 1 X RentperTable$ 300.00 $ 300.00

5. Is PaddlewheelS co(l(Juc!ed at this site?
~ DNumber of T<lbieS X Rentper Table $ No Yes $

6. Is Pull Tabs involving eithera jar barand/ora dispensing deviceconducted at this site? 0 No IRl Yes

Pleasecheck:0 Jar BarOnly o Oispensing DeviceOnly lEI Jar Barand Dispensing Device
$ 325.00

TotalMonthly Rent

$ 625.00

TERMSOF RENTAL AGREEMENT:

This RENTAL AGREEMENT is between the Owner(LESSOR) and Organi~aUon {LESSEE} thatwill beleasing thesite 10conduct gamesof chance.

The LESSOR agreesthatno gamewif!be direcllyoperatedas part of lhe lessor's business.

The LESSOR agrees that the (lessor), (lessor's) spouse, (lessor's) common household members, (management), (management's) spouse, or an
employeeof lhe lessorwho is In a positionto approve or deny a lease maynot conductgames at any of theorganization's siles and, exceptfor officers and
boardof directorsmembers whodid not approve the lease, maynot playgamesat lhatsite. Howevar, a baremployee mayredeem a winning pUll taborprize
boardsinvolvinga dispensing deviceandsell raffleticketsor sportspoolchances on a boardon behalfof an organization,

The LESSOR agrees lhat the lessor's oncall or temporary or permanent employee will not, directly or indireclly, conduct gamesat the site as an employee of
the lesseeon the same daytheemployee is worKing in the areaof the barwherealcoholic beverages are dispensed or consumed.

If Ihe LESSEE provides the Lessor with a temporaryloan of funds for redeeming pull tabsor prize boards, or both, invoMng a dispensing devlce, the lessor
asrees to rQpay the entire loan immediately when the lessee disconlJnuos using tho device at the site.

'rhe LESSOR agrees not to interfere with or attempt to influencethe lessee's selection of games,determination of prizes, Including a bingoJackpot prize, or
disbursement of netproceeds.

TheLESSOR agreesnot to loanmoneyto, providegamingequipment to, or countdrop boxcashfor the lessee.

At Ihe l.ESSOR'S option. !he lesseeagrees that this rental agreement maybe automatically terminated if lhe lessee's gaming licenseIs suspended at thissile
for more thanfourteendaysor revoked.

Signatureof Lessor

( at7,CHL? 1·% '·Z
Date

~./·I
/" ..,_., )'))'1v..l.P·· (Cril(iU./l .~/9/aou:c···..:...J..../'l........... ~ /V"> 1 (

Signtre ofLess~~~c~live Official) TI~ l ~ Date

',/ len', ~ l ~ ~.'~ E~Q..<.....h~ 1)\'('I":::.~~ 05/0;/Z6/~,
"



IConsent No. 11 i

LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
NORTH DAKOTA OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN 17926 (10/2012)\~:r::,~~~~~J'/

Type: IB1 Local Permit *0 Charity Local Permit
Permit Number

2016·32
Name of Organization Date(s) Authorized (Read Instruction 2)

RykerWallaceBenefit
Contact Person Business Phone Number 6f1/2016 10 8/27/2016

Mary J. Dillman 1701\ 226-5178 Beginning Ending
Mailing Address City IState ZipCode

1612 2nd St Ne Mandan ND 58554-0200
Site Name Site Address

Roughrlder Harley Davidson 3708 Memorial Highway
City State IZIPCode County

Mandan NO 58554·QO( Morton
Check theGame(s) Authorized: • Poker. Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only bya Charity Local Permit.

o Bingo @Raffle o Calendar Raffle o Sports Pool o Poker' D Twenty-one' o Paddlewheels'

Restriction:

Requirement: For a"Charily Local Permit," the organization must file a "Report ona Charity Local Permit" with the city orcounty auditor awl. Office of
Attorney General wilhin 30 days of theevent.

Date Signature of: Dcny Auditor 0 County Auditor Printed Name ofCity orCounty Auditor Auditor Telephone Number

Please see the Instructions onihebackside of this form onhowtocomplete the Perml!.
Foraraffle orcalendar raffle, read "Information Required tobePreprinted onaStandard Raffle Ticket" below,

_____________________ cu~~thi~~ _

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET:

1. Nameof organization;
2. 1icket number;
3. Price of the ticket, includingany discounted price;
4. Prize. description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player, or option to converta merchandise prize to a cash prize

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient
space on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars, an organization may state the
total numberof minorprizes and their total retail price;

5. For a licensed organization, print "office of attorney general"and license number. For an organization that has a permit, print
the authorizing city or county and permit number;

6. A statement that a person is or is not required to be presentat a drawing to win;
7, Date and time of the draWing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and time of that

announcement. For a calendar raffle, if the drawingsare on a same day of the week or month,print the day and time of the
drawing;

8. Locationand street address of the drawing;
9. If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a statementthat a winning player is

or is not liable for sales or use tax;
10. If a purchase of a ticket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statementthat a person must be at least

'_'_" years of age to bUy a ticket, or win a prize;
11. A statementthat a purchase of the ticket is not a charitabledonation;
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won

and odds of winning the prize based on numbersof chances; and
13. If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that the winning playermay convert the prize to a

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal or four thousand dollars.



:2D\~'-~2,.~~~ )///t:;?/
APPLICATION FOR A LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL ERMIT be () r-t-
OFFICE OF ATIORNEY GENERAL n e-rr {
SFN 9338 (9-2009) ~~~ '\ . -

.;{'I~-·\·i)it·(\\.~\ '0: - '?GJl,' ~ ;~~~~.mitApplication for' ,,-,~EfJool£mmtt ...... (one even! per year)

Name of Non-profit Organization '---. _.~ Date(s) of Activity

Ryker Wallace Benefit 6/1/2016 to 8/27/2016
Person Responsible for the Gaming Oparauon and the Disbursement of Net Income Title Business Phone Number

Mary J Dillman (701) 226-5178
Business Address Cay State Zip Code

1612 2nd Street Ne Mandan NO 58554-0200
[vlairingAddress (if different) City State Zip Code

Name of Site Wilere Game(s) will be Conducted Site Address

Rouqhrider Harley Davidson 3708 Memorial Highway
City State IZiP Code County

Mandan NO 58554-0000 Morton

Check the Game(s) to be Conducted: • Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a Charity Local Permi!.

o Bingo o Raffle DCalendar Raffle o Sports Pool o Poker' o Twenty-one' D Paddlewheels •

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIL VALUE OF PRIZES TO BE AWARDED

Game Type Description of Prize
Retail Value of

Pri7A

Raffle Drag Slick-Tires $950.00

Raffle HD Craftsman Too $800.00

Raffle Henry 17HMR Gun $550.00

Raffle HD Table & Chair $380.00

Raffle Quilt $375.00

Raffle 2-Facial Laser $350.00

Raffle 2-Laser Hair Rem $300.00

Raffle Floating Island $230.00

Raffle Tool Set $300.00

Game Type Description of Prize
Retail Value of

Prize

Raffle Cash $100.00

iLimit 512,000 peryear)

Total: $ 4,345.00

Intended USElS of gaming proceeds: Ryker Wallace Benefit.....:=:..;.,...;-..;.;....;..;.---..;.;.------------------------

Does the organization presently have a state gaming license? 0 No 0 Yes - If "Yes," the organization is not eligible for a local permit or charity local
permit and should call the Office of Attorney General at 1-800-326-9240.

Has the organization received a charily local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 througll June 30? ~ No 0 Yes - If "Yes,"
the organization does not qualily for a local permit or charity local permit.

Has the organization received a local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 3D? 0 No 0 Yes - If "Yes,"
indicate the total value of all prizes previously awarded: $ . TlJis amounl is part ot tne lolal prize limil of $n,OOOper year.

BUsinessPhone Number

(701) 226-5178



IConsent No. 11 ii I
LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
NORTH DAKOTA OFFICEOFATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN17926 (10/2012)'(~::~~r~:~~~07

Type: o Local Permit * IRI Charity Local Permit
PermitNumber

2016-33
Nameof Organization Date(s) Authorized (Read instruction 2)

Ruo Rat Benefit Softball Tournament (8ismarck Cancer Center
ContactPerson Business Phone Number 6/3/2016 to 6/3/2016

Duey Johnson (701) 223-7877 Beginning Ending

MailingAddress City IState Zip Code

4733 Ottawa St Bismarck NO 58503-0000
Site Name SiteAddress

Mandan Softball Complex 4th St And 6th Ave Sw
City State IZIP Code County

Mandan ND 58554-00( Morton
Checkthe Game(s) Authorized: • Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels maybe Conducted onlyby a CharityLocalPermit.

081ngo IRl Raffle o CalendarRaffle o sports Pool o Poker> o Twenty-one> o Paddlewheels*

Restriction:

Requirement: For a "Charity Local Permit,"the organization must file a "Reporton a CharItyLocal Permit" with the city or county auditor and. Office of
Attorney General Within 30 days of the event.

Date ISignature of: OCily Auditor DCounty Auditor PrintedNameof Cityor County Auditor Auditor Telephone Number

Pleasesee the instructions on the backside of this formon howto complete the Permit.
For a raffieor calendar raffie, read"Information Required to be Preprinted ona Standard Raffie Ticket" below.

---------------------~~~~~~--------------------------

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET:

1. Name of organization;
2. Ticket number;
3. Price of the ticket, inclUding any discounted price;
4. Prize, description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player, or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient
space on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars, an organization may state the
total number of minor prizes and their total retail price;

5. For a licensed organization, print "office of attorney general" and license number. For an organization that has a permit, print
the authorizing city or county and permit number;

6. A statement that a person is or is not required to be present at a drawing to win;
7. Date and time of the drawing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and time of that

announcement. For a calendar raffle, if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the
drawing;

8. Location and street address of the drawing;
9. If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a statement that a winning player is

or is not liable for sales or use tax;
10. If a purchase of a ticket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statement that a person must be at least

'_'_" years of age to buy a ticket, or win a prize;
11. A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donatlon;
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won

and odds of winning the prize based on numbers of chances; and
13. If a prize is five beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that the winning player may convert the prlze to a

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal or four thousand dollars.



APPLICATION FOR A LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
OFFICEOF ATTORNEY GENERAL
SFN 9338 (10/2015)

Application for:

o Paddlewheels'

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIL VALUE OF PRIZESTO BEAWARDED

Description of Prize Retail Value of Game Type Description of Prize Retail Value of
Pri7A

(limit$12.000 per year)

Total: $

Does the organization presently have a state gaming license?~o 0 Yes - If "res," the organization is nol eligible for a local permit or charity local
permit and should call the Office of Attorney General at 1-800-326-9240.

Has the organization received a charily local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 3D?~o DYes - If "Yes,"
the organization does not qualify for a local permit ar charity local permit.

Has the organization received a local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 30? .P!1No 0 Yes . If "Yes,"
Indicate the tolal value of all prizes previously awarded: $ . This amount is part Ofthe total prize limit of $12,000 per year.



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE – The International Fire Code provides for a Board of Appeals 

to hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions, or determinations made by the fire 

official.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES – The International Fire Code requires a board of 

appeals within our jurisdiction and that board shall consist of five voting members that 

must be confirmed by the Mandan governing body. The five member board should 

include a design professional, fire protection engineering professional, industrial safety 

professional, general contractor, and general industry or business representative. I have 

contacted six individuals to best fit the categories recommended by the International Fire 

Code and I am recommending approval of these individuals. The recommendations are as 

follows: 

 Design professional – Rich Zittleman, Al Fitterer Architects 

 Fire protection engineer – Randy Abels, Rapid Fire Protection 

 Industrial safety professional – Jerry Cozzi, Electric Scientific with Jamie 

Reinholt, Tesoro Refinery as alternate 

 General Contractor – Brandon Sandberg – Northwest Contracting 

 General Industry – Joseph Cox, Bismarck Fire Marshal 

 

ATTACHMENTS – International Fire Code appendix A, Board of Appeals. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT – There would be no fiscal impact. 

 

STAFF IMPACT – The requirement of a fire code appellate board is currently part of fire 

department duties.  

 

LEGAL REVIEW – Review of International Fire Code Appendix A, Board of Appeals. 

MEETING DATE:       May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 4, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Fire  

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Steve Nardello 

PRESENTER: Steve Nardello  

SUBJECT: Fire Code Appeals Board 

 

  

New Business No. 1 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: International Fire Code Board of Appeals 

Page 2 of 3 

 

RECOMMENDATION – Approve Rich Zittleman, Randy Abels, Jerry Kusnia, Jamie 

Reinholt (alternate), Brandon Sandberg, and Joseph Cox to the International Fire Code 

Board of Appeals. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION – Motion to appoint Rich Zittleman, Randy Abels, Jerry 

Kusnia, Jamie Reinholt (alternate), Brandon Sandberg, and Joseph Cox to the Mandan 

City International Fire Code Board of Appeals. 

 

APPENDIX A 

BOARD OF APPEALS 
The provisions contained in this appendix are not mandatory unless specifically referenced in the 

adopting ordinance. 

SECTION A101 

GENERAL 

A101.1 Scope. A board of appeals shall be established within the jurisdiction for the purpose of hearing 

applications for modification of the requirements of the International Fire Code pursuant to the provisions 

of Section 108 of the International Fire Code. The board shall be established and operated in accordance 

with this section, and shall be authorized to hear evidence from appellants and the fire code official 

pertaining to the application and intent of this code for the purpose of issuing orders pursuant to these 

provisions. 

A101.2 Membership. The membership of the board shall consist of five voting members having the 

qualifications established by this section. Members shall be nominated by the fire code official or the chief 

administrative officer of the jurisdiction, subject to confirmation by a majority vote of the governing body. 

Members shall serve without remuneration or compensation, and shall be removed from office prior to 

the end of their appointed terms only for cause.  

A101.2.1 Design professional. One member shall be a practicing design professional registered in the 

practice of engineering or architecture in the state in which the board is established. 

A101.2.2 Fire protection engineering professional. One member shall be a qualified engineer,  

technologist, technician or safety professional trained in fire protection engineering, fire science or fire 

technology. Qualified representatives in this category shall include fire protection contractors and certified 

technicians engaged in fire protection system design. 

A101.2.3 Industrial safety professional. One member shall be a registered industrial or chemical engineer, 

certified hygienist, certified safety professional, certified hazardous materials manager or comparably 

qualified specialist experienced in chemical process safety or industrial safety. 

A101.2.4 General contractor. One member shall be a contractor regularly engaged in the construction, 

alteration, maintenance, repair or remodeling of buildings or building services and systems regulated by the 

code. 

A101.2.5 General industry or business representative. One member shall be a representative of business 

or industry not represented by a member from one of the other categories of board members described 

above. 

A101.3 Terms of office. Members shall be appointed for terms of four years. No member shall be 

reappointed to serve more than two consecutive full terms. 

A101.3.1 Initial appointments. Of the members first appointed, two shall be appointed for a term of one 

year, two for a term of two years, one for a term of three years. 

A101.3.2 Vacancies. Vacancies shall be filled for an unexpired term in the manner in which original 

appointments are required to be made. Members appointed to fill a vacancy in an unexpired term shall be 

eligible for reappointment to two full terms. 

A101.3.3 Removal from office. Members shall be removed from office prior to the end of their terms only 

for cause. Continued absence of any member from regular meetings of the board shall, at the discretion of 

the applicable governing body, render any such member liable to immediate removal from office. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016 

Subject: International Fire Code Board of Appeals 

Page 3 of 3 

 
A101.4 Quorum. Three members of the board shall constitute a quorum. In varying the application of any 

provisions of this code or in modifying an order of the fire code official, affirmative votes of the majority 

present, but not less than three, shall be required. 

A101.5 Secretary of board. The fire code official shall act as secretary of the board and shall keep a 

detailed record of all its proceedings, which shall set forth the reasons for its decisions, the vote of each 

member, the absence of a member and any failure of a member to vote. 

A101.6 Legal counsel. The jurisdiction shall furnish legal counsel to the board to provide members with 

general legal advice concerning matters before them for consideration. Members shall be represented by 

legal counsel at the jurisdiction's expense in all matters arising from service within the scope of their duties. 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider offering city-owned land at 301 E Main Street 

for sale or lease. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The City of Mandan obtained this property, land 

only, as part of a donation in 2006 by BNSF of the former elevator property. The property 

is 17,815 sf and it has buildings on it totaling 7,718 sf that are owned by Friedt, Inc. 

which has operated the Dollar Store and a construction company from the site. Retail 

store operator Maria Friedt is retiring and she and her husband have interest in selling the 

building. Research has found no existing lease agreement between the City and Freidt, 

Inc; however, the building owner does have a lease agreement with BNSF for a small 

parcel of property on the south side of the city lot on which the building overlaps. This 

parcel is adjacent to the railroad track. 

 

The city-owned lot is adjacent to parcels owned privately by Koch Brothers Investments, 

where building tenants are Pizza Ranch and Krystal Nails, and INREIT Properties, LLP, 

where building tenants are Family Dollar and O’Reilly Auto Parts.  

 

If the City Commission approves offering the property for sale or lease, it needs to be 

made available for public bid or proposal in some manner because of its value if sold and 

for lease if beyond short-term. There are at least two private parties indicating interest in 

the property. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Draft invitation for bids including plat map and aerial map. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The property has true and full value for assessing purposes of 

$61,200 or $3.44 psf. The land immediately to the east was sold in 2006 for $5 psf. 

Property at the corner of Collins and Main Street sold for $10 psf. This land is 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 12, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: City Administration & Business Development 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator; Ellen Huber, 

Business Development & Communications 

Director 

PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Consider sale or lease of land at 301 E Main St. 

 

  

New Business No. 2  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  May 17, 2016 

Subject: Sale or lease of 301 E Main St. 

Page 2 of 2 

 

encumbered by buildings that are blighted and in need of renovation or demolition and 

redevelopment. Thus the sales value is likely in a range of $61,200 to $178,150. 

 

Lease rates for land along the south side of Main have varied from the current $0.15 psf 

for Al and Linda Kuntz at 211 W Main to BNSF leases of $.28 psf  for Stryker 

Enterprises for 1005 E Main Street and $.45 psf for the former Cass Clay/Kemp’s site on 

the west end of Main Street. Thus a lease has a value ranging from $2,672 to $8,017 

annually, for a value over a 20-year lease of $53,440 to $160,335. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  n/a 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Attorney Brown has advised extending an invitation for public bid 

for the sale or lease of the property. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  We recommend offering the land for sale through a public bid 

with a minimum price of $61,200 or $3.44 per square foot. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve extending an invitation for bid for the sale 

of city-owned land at 301 E Main Street with a minimum price of $61,200 or $3.44 per 

square foot. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Invitation for Bids: 
SALE OF PROPERTY – 301 E Main Street 

 

 

The City of Mandan is accepting sealed bids for the sale of city-owned land at 301 E Main Street. Bids 
must be submitted by 10 a.m. on Tuesday, June 7, 2016, at which time they will be publicly opened 
and read aloud. Submit bids to City Administrator Jim Neubauer, City Hall, 205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan.  Bids must be in the form of a cashier’s check. The minimum bid is $3.44 psf or $61,200. The 
City Commission will consider the award of bid at their June 7, 2016, meeting. 

Property information. The property is identified as City Parcel 
65-6103050. The legal description is the Lot 3 of Block 1 of 
BNSF Commercial Park 1st Addition. The property’s 
dimensions are 131 feet by approximately 136 feet, totaling 
17,815 square feet. Property taxes are paid in full and there 
are no special assessments due on the property 

Zoning is CB (Central Business District commercial) permitting 
a variety of commercial and retail uses. The property is located 

in the Downtown Fringe overlay area, which stipulates the use of higher quality building materials in any 
renovation or redevelopment. The site is in the Renaissance Zone, which allows for property and state 
income tax exemption with a qualified investment in new construction or rehabilition of an existing 
building. It is also in an area elibilble for the Storefront Improvement Program, which provides matching 
funds of up to $30,000 for improvements to the building’s façade. 

For more information. Any questions regarding this property should be directed to City Administrator 
Jim Neubauer, phone 701-667-3215 or e-mail jneubauer@cityofmandan.com.  

Other. All bids are public documents upon their receipt. The city reserves the right to accept or reject any 
or all bids and to waive any informality in bids. 



~ririM
CITY or

MANDAN
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS"

New Business No.3

Board of City Commissioners

Agenda Documentation

MEETING DATE:
PREPARATION DATE:
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT:
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR:
PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:

May 17,2016
May 9,2016
Mandan Progress Organization
Del Wetsch
Del Wetsch
City of Mandan Grant Funding

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To consider funding from City of Mandan advertising budget of
$20,000. Applications reviewed by MPO subcommittee for recommendation to city
commission for approval.

BACKGROUNDIALTERNATIVES: Organizations need to provide criteria of how monies
are spent and the impact each event has on the community. Funding needs to add to the
economic and well-being of the community and increase the quality of life for the citizens.

ATTACHMENTS: MPO letter from the Board of Directors for the approval of the funding
applications. Applications are available upon request.

FISCAL IMPACT: Provides organizations the ability to bring new events to the community
and assists in keeping established events continued growth which allows for the benefit of
betterment to the citizens of our community and its visitors. Provides a basis for economic
impact on the business community and for citizens and visitors a better quality of life. Grant
monies awarded are divided between 50% in Mandan Bucks and 50% check which is spent
in the City of Mandan.

STAFF IMPACT: 5 hours of prep work and meeting to review applications.

LEGAL REVIEW: A Funding Committee consisting of members from the MPO Board of
Directors makes recommendations to the MPO Board for approval before going before the
city commission for final approval.

RECOMMENDAnON: Accept the following applications submitted by the MPO Funding
Committee and approved by the MPO Board of Directors on April 25, 2016.

SUGGESTED MOTION: Approve the following organizations the amounts suggested by the
MPO Funding committee and approved by the MPO Board of Directors on April 25, 2016.



mandan
PROGRESS ORGANIZATION

To: Greg Welch and Board of City Commissioners

Fr: Del Wetsch MPO Executive Director

Re: City Funding Request Grants

The Mandan Progress Organization Funding Committee met on April 21,2016 and reviewed 19

applications submitted for assistance in funding provided by the city of Mandan's advertising budget to

organizations which work toward the betterment and enhance the quality of life in the community.

The funding recommendations are based upon information supplies from the grant application provided

by the MPO. Criteria is based on the following 1. Number of times applying, 2.value of the event to the

community, 3.quality of the event, 4. Number of spectators event draws, 5. If event is new to the

community. A point system if used to grade the event.

Each year the city sets aside $20,000 from the cities advertising budget to promote events in the city.

The sum is awarded 50% cash check and 50% in Mandan Bucks.

The Mandan Senior Center was not funded as it did not qualify for the criteria in the grant. They had

requested funding for replacement windows for the senior center.

The MPO Board of Directors approved the applications and amount of funding on April zs'" and are

recommending the distribution of funding to the organizations after approval of the city commission.

See attached sheet for organizations and the amount funded for each group.

Del Wetsch

Executive Director Mandan Progress Organization

411West Main · Mandan, North Dakota 58554
701-751-2983 · Cell: 701-220-2959

E-mails: dw etsch@mandanprogress.org • the lmers@mandanprogress.org



Organizati on

Mandan Lions

Mandan Road Race

Old Red Old Ten Comm.

Oacot ah Speedway

NO Railraod Museum

Mandan Horse & Saddle Club

Friends of Ft. Lincoln

Parade Committee July 4

Mdn. Parks Nat . Softball

Mandan Parks Slide the City

Muscians Assoc.

Heritage Plaza Committee

Mandan Rodeo Committee

Art in the Park Commit tee

Touch a Truck Committee

Grill Fest Committee

Oktober Fest Committee

Ft. Lincoln State Park

Ma ndan Golden Age

Total

50% in Man dan Bucks

2016 Funding Grants

Funding

$350 .00

$1,250.00

$250.00

$2,300.00

$500.00

$1,500.00

$200.00

$1,000.00

$500.00

$500.00

$2,000.00

$1,350.00

$2,000 .00

$1,300 .00

$1,500.00

$1,200 .00

$1,800.00

$500.00

$0.00

$20,000

50% in cash

Points

81

75
73

88

74
84
61

105

93
110

99
120
108

108

108

98
106

92
o



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To get commission endorsement for swapping projects 

within the TIP and forward that endorsement onto the MPO and DOT. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: In December, our department brought a list of 

Urban Roads Program projects for commission’s approval. These projects were those we 

proposed to apply for federal funding in the year 2020. After commission, we submitted 

to the MPO who in turn forwarded on to the DOT after the MPO had prioritized. Number 

one on our list was a project to reconstruct the stretch of McKenzie Drive SE between the 

west side on and off ramps to 46
th

 Avenue and also included installation of traffic signals 

at the intersection of McKenzie and 46
th

. As part of the submission, we noted that if 

approved, we would want to look at swapping for a project of similar cost currently 

scheduled for reconstruction in 2017, that being 27
th

 Street NW. 

 

While 27
th

 Street NW from 1806 to 8
th

 Avenue is in degraded condition and due for 

reconstruction, we don’t feel that it is as urgent as this section of McKenzie has become. 

The pavement at McKenzie is unravelling fast and is in poor condition. Additionally, the 

growth in that area of town has continued to be more accelerated than any other parts of 

town. Considering the growth and including the opening of the YMCA scheduled for 

2017 adjacent to that intersection and we believe that a traffic light is warranted at that 

intersection sooner than later. 

 

The DOT has indicated that they would facilitate this request if submitted as long as it 

doesn’t change the dollar amounts programmed which we do not propose to do. They are 

looking forward to this request soon so that they can finalize the 2017-2020 TIP.      

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

 

1) 2017-2020 Draft TIP 

 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 13, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Swap Two Projects within 2017-2020 Draft TIP 

 

  

New Business No. 4  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016  

Subject: TIP Projects Swap 

Page 2 of 3 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The two projects are programed in the TIP for similar amounts. 

Currently, the 27
th

 Street project is programmed to receive $809,300 in federal funds in 

2017 while McKenzie is programmed to receive $1,052,090 in 2020. If swapped, the city 

would still only receive that 2017 amount of about $800K for the McKenzie project. 

However, that should be enough to pay for the majority of this job, even if it does not rise 

to 80% of the total project.  

 

The local share would be paid for by the sales tax fund, city-wide property taxes, and 

regional special assessments.    

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my items have been forwarded to the city attorney for review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Request that the DOT swap the projects.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the request to swap the McKenzie Drive 

project within the TIP, year 2020, for the 27
th

 Street project within the TIP, year 2017.   

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016  

Subject: TIP Projects Swap 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To update on likely schedule of each option and approach to 

assessments of each.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: A last week’s joint meeting with the Parks and 

Recreation Department our office updated both commissions on improvements necessary 

to Old Red Trail in order to satisfy the DOT’s concerns about access into the property. 

The concerns stem from the traffic impact study done and the recommendation within 

that study to have a 3-lane roadway in order to dedicate a lane for left hand turns into the 

property. A substantial project ($7.5million) that includes this section is programed in the 

state’s Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) for the year 2020. In order to satisfy 

the DOT and accomplish a 3-lane roadway in the meantime though, we laid out three 

options. Briefly, they were:  

 

Option 1 - Proceed with an advanced construction option for entire project allowed by 

ND DOT for construction as soon as planned with reimbursement in 2020  - roughly 

takes into account concrete repairs on Mandan Avenue, widening of Old Red Trail from 

Mandan Avenue, through the intersection of Collins Ave and moving north along Hwy 

1806 to 27
th

 Street. Road work project cost for this is preliminary $7.5M. Project funding 

is approved in the draft Transportation Improvements Plan by the DOT. The city would 

need, in some manner, to pay for the project until such time Federal /State funds would be 

available. Possibly 2020 or beyond. The State Federal portion would be 90% and local 

10%. The $7.5M would be for roadway reconstruction and not utilities. 

 

Option 2 - Proceed with an advanced construction option for  three lane roadway from 

250’ feet east of the entrance to future 16
th

 Street through the Collins Ave intersection to 

meet ND DOT and Fed Highway specifications. This would provide the opportunity for 

future reimbursement from ND DOT and Fed Highway for 90% of that cost. Estimated 

cost is $3-4M. This is not including other utilities and as in option 1 if looking for 

reimbursement from Fed/State would need to be constructed to meet their specifications. 

 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 13, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Old Red Trail Adjacent to Sports Complex Update 

 

  

REVISED 5/17  New Business No. 5  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016  

Subject: Old Red Trail Adjacent to Sports Complex Update 

Page 2 of 3 

 

Option 3 - Widen the existing Old Red Trail to support a 3
rd

 lane from 250’ east of 

entrance to 16
th

 Street thru intersection of Collins and Old Red Trail. Estimated total cost 

would be $500-600k. Issue would be that when the full reconstruct of Old Red Trail 

might occur, say 2020, this work, other than possibly some sub grade prep work would be 

blown up. Funding could be through a special assessment district.  

 

Our office has asked the DOT several questions to understand more about these options 

such as; How often is the advanced construction method used and has federal funding 

ever not come through when stated? How would the DOT view the opening of the 

complex while the improvements were under contract and perhaps in the middle of 

construction? We have not received answers to these yet on such short notice.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1) Option #1 Preliminary Schedule 

2) Option #2 Preliminary Schedule 

3) Option #3 Preliminary Schedule 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Some thought has been given to the assessments for each option as 

shown below: 

 

Option 1 – The city would need to finance the federal and state share until reimbursement 

became available in 2020. The local assessment amount would be on par with our typical 

amount of assessing such a project which would be half of the 10% local share or 5% of 

the total project with the other half of the local share funded by the city sales tax fund and 

city-wide property taxes. Therefore, the assessment amount is expected to be $7,500,000 

X 0.05 = $375,000. Creating the assessment district will take more time and effort and 

review in order to make sure we fairly include those that benefit and allocate benefit 

appropriately. An early look at potential area that may directly benefit includes 

approximately 500 acres. $375,000/500 acres = $750/acre to give an idea of potential 

assessments.    

 

Option 2 – This option should be similar if not the same as option 1 in percent to be 

assessed and size of district, the difference with option 2 is that we are likely looking at 

two periods of assessing. The first to be when the portion of Old Red Trail adjacent to the 

park property would be constructed and the second when the remaining TIP project 

would be constructed. The first assessment amount would likely be near $4,000,000 x 

0.05 = $200,000. If 500 acres within district, then $200,000/500 properties = $400/acre.  

    

Option 3 – This option would not be eligible for federal reimbursement thus likely all 

funded by special assessments. Because of the short-term nature of this simple widening 

project and the remaining need for the long-term TIP project, our office believes it would 

be reasonable to drastically reduce the size of this assessment district down to those 

properties that are directly adjacent to the improvement. If 150 acres within the district, 

then $550,000/150 acres = $3,667/acre. These properties within this area are relatively 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016  

Subject: Old Red Trail Adjacent to Sports Complex Update 

Page 3 of 3 

 

large and commercial and industrial in nature. The properties that likely stand to gain the 

most from this project would be the Sports Complex and the commercial property just 

east of it. That would have to be taken into consideration when finalizing the benefits and 

in turn assessment cost allocations of each. This project would bring in road bed material 

that would benefit the future TIP project, that could be considered in a credit for future 

assessments needed to construct the TIP project.  

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  N/A, for information 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: N/A  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To update on likely schedule of each option and approach to 

assessments of each.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: A last week’s joint meeting with the Parks and 

Recreation Department our office updated both commissions on improvements necessary 

to Old Red Trail in order to satisfy the DOT’s concerns about access into the property. 

The concerns stem from the traffic impact study done and the recommendation within 

that study to have a 3-lane roadway in order to dedicate a lane for left hand turns into the 

property. A substantial project ($7.5million) that includes this section is programed in the 

state’s Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) for the year 2020. In order to satisfy 

the DOT and accomplish a 3-lane roadway in the meantime though, we laid out three 

options. Briefly, they were:  

 

Option 1 - Proceed with an advanced construction option for entire project allowed by 

ND DOT for construction as soon as planned with reimbursement in 2020  - roughly 

takes into account concrete repairs on Mandan Avenue, widening of Old Red Trail from 

Mandan Avenue, through the intersection of Collins Ave and moving north along Hwy 

1806 to 27
th

 Street. Road work project cost for this is preliminary $7.5M. Project funding 

is approved in the draft Transportation Improvements Plan by the DOT. The city would 

need, in some manner, to pay for the project until such time Federal /State funds would be 

available. Possibly 2020 or beyond. The State Federal portion would be 90% and local 

10%. The $7.5M would be for roadway reconstruction and not utilities. 

 

Option 2 - Proceed with an advanced construction option for  three lane roadway from 

250’ feet east of the entrance to future 16
th

 Street through the Collins Ave intersection to 

meet ND DOT and Fed Highway specifications. This would provide the opportunity for 

future reimbursement from ND DOT and Fed Highway for 90% of that cost. Estimated 

cost is $3-4M. This is not including other utilities and as in option 1 if looking for 

reimbursement from Fed/State would need to be constructed to meet their specifications. 

 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 13, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Old Red Trail Adjacent to Sports Complex Update 

 

  

New Business No. 5  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016  

Subject: Old Red Trail Adjacent to Sports Complex Update 

Page 2 of 6 

 

Option 3 - Widen the existing Old Red Trail to support a 3
rd

 lane from 250’ east of 

entrance to 16
th

 Street thru intersection of Collins and Old Red Trail. Estimated total cost 

would be $500-600k. Issue would be that when the full reconstruct of Old Red Trail 

might occur, say 2020, this work, other than possibly some sub grade prep work would be 

blown up. Funding could be through a special assessment district.  

 

Our office has asked the DOT several questions to understand more about these options 

such as; How often is the advanced construction method used and has federal funding 

ever not come through when stated? How would the DOT view the opening of the 

complex while the improvements were under contract and perhaps in the middle of 

construction? We have not received answers to these yet on such short notice.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1) Option #1 Preliminary Schedule 

2) Option #2 Preliminary Schedule 

3) Option #3 Preliminary Schedule 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Some thought has been given to the assessments for each option as 

shown below: 

 

Option 1 – The city would need to finance the federal and state share until reimbursement 

became available in 2020. The local assessment amount would be on par with our typical 

amount of assessing such a project which would be half of the 10% local share or 5% of 

the total project with the other half of the local share funded by the city sales tax fund and 

city-wide property taxes. Therefore, the assessment amount is expected to be $7,500,000 

X 0.05 = $375,000. Creating the assessment district will take more time and effort and 

review in order to make sure we fairly include those that benefit and allocate benefit 

appropriately. An early look at potential properties that may directly benefit includes 

approximately 200-300. $375,000/200properties = $1,875/property on average to give 

an idea of potential assessments.    

 

Option 2 – This option should be similar if not the same as option 1 in percent to be 

assessed and size of district, the difference with option 2 is that we are likely looking at 

two periods of assessing. The first to be when the portion of Old Red Trail adjacent to the 

park property would be constructed and the second when the remaining TIP project 

would be constructed. The first assessment amount would likely be near $4,000,000 x 

0.05 = $200,000. If 200 properties within district, then $200,000/200 properties = 

$1,000/property on average.  

    

Option 3 – This option would not be eligible for federal reimbursement thus likely all 

funded by special assessments. Because of the short-term nature of this simple widening 

project and the remaining need for the long-term TIP project, our office believes it would 

be reasonable to drastically reduce the size of this assessment district down to those 

properties that are directly adjacent to the improvement. If five properties within the 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016  

Subject: Old Red Trail Adjacent to Sports Complex Update 

Page 3 of 6 

 

district, then $550,000/5 = $110,000 per property on average. These properties are 

relatively large and commercial and industrial in nature. The properties that likely stand 

to gain the most from this project would be the Sports Complex and the commercial 

property just east of it. That would have to be taken into consideration when finalizing the 

benefits and in turn assessment cost allocations of each. This project would bring in road 

bed material that would benefit the future TIP project, that could be considered in a credit 

for future assessments needed to construct the TIP project.  

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  N/A, for information 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: N/A  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016  

Subject: Old Red Trail Adjacent to Sports Complex Update 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016  

Subject: Old Red Trail Adjacent to Sports Complex Update 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: May 17, 2016  

Subject: Old Red Trail Adjacent to Sports Complex Update 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The city has received a letter from the property owners at 

2300 14
th

 Avenue SE requesting annexation in order to obtain city utility services. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Albert and Luella Kroh own the property at 2300 

14
th

 Ave SE.  Some of the properties along 14
th

 Avenue SE are in the city and some are 

not.  This property is not in the city but the properties on each side are in the city. 

 

There are city owned and operated potable water and sanitary sewer lines in 14
th

 Avenue 

SE that have capacity to serve this property. 

 

The Kroh’s are primarily interested in obtaining city potable water service due to the poor 

quality of their private well water.  Their on-site wastewater disposal system is 

functioning properly, as verified by Custer Health Department, so there is no urgency to 

convert to city sanitary sewer service. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  County property information and aerial photo.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Gain a utility customer. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All documents have been forwarded to attorney Brown for review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff is asking for authorization to draft an agreement with the 

Kroh’s to accomplish annexation of the property and provide city utility services.   

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to authorize staff to prepare an agreement to accomplish 

annexation and provide city services to the property located at 2300 14
th

 Avenue SE. 

 

MEETING DATE: May 17, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: May 13, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert G. Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Request for Annexation and utility service at 2300 

14
th

 Avenue SE 

 

  

New Business No. 6  



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  May 17, 2016 

Subject:  Annexation request for 2300 14
th

 Avenue SE 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTIONS #1

Board of City Commissioners

Agenda Documentation

·WHERE THE WEST BEGINS"

MEETING DATE:
PREPARATION DATE:
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT:
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR:
PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:

May 17,2016
May 12, 2016
Finance
Greg Welch , Finance Director
Greg Welch, Finance Director
Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $5,030,000
Refunding Improvement Bonds of2016, Series A.

PURPOSE
To consider the Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $5,030,000 Refunding Improvement
Bonds of 2016, Series A for the purpose of refunding the City 's Refunding Improvement
Bonds of 2007, Series C, Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2007, Series D and
Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2008 , Series B.

BACKGROUND
The refinancing of the old Bonds (2007, Series C; 2007, Series D; 2008, Series B) was
necessary to take advantage of the lower interest rates with the sale of the new Bonds
(2016, Series A) on May 3, 2016. The following special assessment districts were
affected as a result of the refinancing:

• Storm Sewer #26
• Sanitary Sewer #30
• Sanitary Sewer #144
• Street #137-Area A
• Street #137-Area B
• Street #138-Area B
• Street #138-Area C
• Street #138-Area D
• Street #139
• Street #140
• Street #141-Area A
• Street #141-Area B
• Street #141-Area C



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: May 17,2016
Subject: Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $5,030,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds
of2016, Series A.
Page 2 of2

• Street #143
• Street #145
• Street #149-AreaA
• Street #149-Area B
• Street #149-Area C
• Water and Sewer #48-Area A
• Water and Sewer #48-Area B
• Water and Sewer #50
• Water and Sewer #53
• Water and Sewer #54

ATTACHMENT
Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $5,030,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016,
Series A.

FISCAL IMPACT
The total Net Present Value Benefit (NPV) savings is $398,525 or 7.899%. This savings
is net of the issuance costs. A common method to determine if the refunding is
appropriate is that the savings, net of all issuance costs, should be at least 3% to 5% as a
NPV percentage of the refunded bonds.

The net savings from the refinancing will be passed on to the balances owed by the
special assessment districts indicated above through lower interest rates effective May 25,
2016.

STAFF IMPACT
None

LEGAL REVIEW
Steve Vogelpohl, Bond Counsel, prepared the Resolution.

RECOMMENDATION
To approve the Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $5,030,000 Refunding Improvement
Bonds of2016, Series A.

SUGGESTED MOTION
Move to approve the Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $5,030,000 Refunding
Improvement Bonds of2016, Series A.



Greg Welch

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

Greg,

Steven Vogelpohl

Wednesday, May 11, 2016 3:30 PM

Greg Welch

Brown, Malcolm H.

Resolution for May 17 City Commission Meeting

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF $5,030,000 REFUNDING IMPROVEMENT

BONDS OF 2016, SERIES A.pdf

Attached for adoption by the City Commission at its May 17 meeting is the Resolution Authorizing
Issuance of $5,030,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series A.

If you could send me the voting record information, I'll then prepare execution copies of the
Resolution.

Thankyou for your assistance and please don't hesitate to contact me if you've any questions on the
above.

Steve

1



CITY OF MANDAN
COUNTY OF MORTON

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF
$5,030,000

REFUNDING IMPROVEMENT BONDS OF 2016, SERIES A

WHEREAS, the City of Mandan, North Dakota (the "City") by resolution duly
adopted November 6, 2007 (the "2007C Resolution") authorized the issuance of its
Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2007, Series C (the" 2007C Bonds") payable from
the City of Mandan Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2007, Series C Fund (the
"2007C Fund"), a portion of which 2007C Bonds are outstanding as of the date of
this Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $5,030,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of
2016, Series A (the "Resolution");

WHEREAS, the City by resolution duly adopted December 4,2007 (the "20070
Resolution") authorized the issuance of its Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2007,
Series 0 (the "20070 Bonds") payable from the City of Mandan Refunding
Improvement Bonds of 2007, Series 0 Fund (the "20070 Fund"), a portion of which
20070 Bonds are outstanding as of the date of this Resolution;

WHEREAS, the City by resolution duly adopted July 1, 2008 (the "2008B
Resolution") authorized the issuance of its Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2008,
Series B (the "2008B Bonds") payable from the City of Mandan Refunding
Improvement Bonds of 2008, Series B Fund (the "2008B Fund"), a portion of which
2008B Bonds are outstanding as of the date of this Resolution (the 2007C Resolution,
20070 Resolution and 2008B Resolution being hereinafter together referred to as the
"Prior Resolutions" and the 2007C Fund, 20070 Fund and 2008B Fund being
hereinafter together referred to as the "Prior Funds");

WHEREAS, there are not at the present time sufficient moneys in the 2007C
Fund to pay and discharge all outstanding 2007C Bonds, in the 20070 Fund to pay
and discharge all outstanding 20070 Bonds or in the 2008B Fund to pay and discharge
all outstanding 2008B Bonds (the 2007C Bonds, 20070 Bonds and 2008B Bonds
being hereinafter together referred to as the "Prior Bonds"); and

WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were issued pursuant to North Dakota Century Code
Chapter 40-27, and through the issuance of new refunding improvement bonds for the
purpose of refunding all Prior Bonds having stated maturities in 2017 and thereafter
(the "Refunded Bonds"), the City can reduce debt service thereon;

1



NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the governing body of the City as follows:

Section 1. Authorization and Sale. There is hereby authorized to be issued a
series of bonds designated "City of Mandan Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016,
Series A", in the total principal amount set forth in Section 2 below (the "Bonds") for
the purpose of refunding the Refunded Bonds. The sale of the Bonds was awarded on
May 3, 2016, to Dougherty & Company LLC, Minneapolis, Minnesota (the
"Purchaser"), on the terms and conditions set forth herein and at a purchase price of
$5,086,722.90 plus accrued interest, and such sale of the Bonds for said purpose is
hereby in all things ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 2. Terms. The Bonds are issued pursuant to North Dakota Century
Code Chapter 40-27 and shall be issued according to the following terms:

(a) Principal Amount of Issue - The total principal amount of Bonds shall be
$5,030,000.

(b) Book Entry Registration -

(1) The Bonds shall be issued as book entry bonds as required by The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC") in the
aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Bonds.
The Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of
DTC, and the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent named in Section 2(e}
hereof (the "Bond Registrar and Paying Agent") shall treat the record
owner as the absolute owner of the Bonds. So long as Cede & Co. is the
registered owner of the Bonds, references herein to the Bondholder,
owner, etc. shall mean Cede & Co. and shall not mean the beneficial
owners of the Bonds. Sales by purchasers of the Bonds of beneficial
interest participations in the Bonds to beneficial owners will be limited to
minimum denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple in excess
thereof.

(2) With respect to the Bonds registered in the registration books kept
by the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent in the name of Cede & Co., as
nominee of DTC, the City and the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent shall
have no responsibility or obligation to any Participant (as referenced in
the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations a copy of which is attached
hereto as Attachment 3) or to any person on behalf of which a
Participant holds an interest in the Bonds. Without limiting the
immediately preceding sentence, the City and the Bond Registrar and
Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i)

the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any Participant with

2



respect to any ownership interest in the Bonds, (ij) the delivery to any
Participant or any other person, other than a Bondholder, as shown in the
registration books kept by the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent, of any
notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or
(iii) the payment to any Participant or any other person, other than a
Bondholder, as shown in the registration books kept by the Bond
Registrar and Paying Agent, of any amount with respect to principal of,
premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds. The City and the Bond
Registrar and Paying Agent may treat and consider the person in whose
name each Bond is registered in the registration books kept by the Bond
Registrar and Paying Agent as the holder and absolute owner of such
Bond for the purpose of payment of principal, premium, if any, and
interest with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of giving notices of
redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for the purpose
of registering transfers with respect to such Bond, and for all other
purposes whatsoever. The Bond Registrar and Paying Agent shall pay all
pr incipal of, premium, if any, and the interest on the Bonds only to or
upon the order of the respective Bondholders, as shown in the
registration books kept by the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent, or their
respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments
shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the City's
obligations with respect to payment of principal of, premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No
person other than a Bondholder, as shown in the registration books kept
by the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent, shall receive a certificated Bond
evidencing the obligation of the City to make payments of principal,
premium, if any, and interest pursuant to this Resolution. Upon delivery
by OTC to the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent of written notice to the
effect that OTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of
Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions herein with respect to record
dates , the word "Cede & Co ." shall refer to such new nominee of OTC.

(3) The Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations, a copy of which is
attached hereto as Attachment 3, has been executed by the City and has
been filed with OTC . The Bond Registrar and Paying Agent shall take all
actions necessary to at all times comply with OTC 's Operational
Arrangements , as same may be amended from time to time.

(4) (i) OTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with
respect to the Bonds at any time by giving notice to the City and
the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent.

3



(ii) The City may terminate the services of DTC with respect to
the Bonds if the City determines that:

(A) DTC is unable to discharge its responsibilities with
respect to the Bonds, or

(B) A continuance of the requirement that all of the
outstanding Bonds be registered in the registration books
kept by the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent in the name of
Cede & Co., or any other nominee of DTC, is not in the best
interest of the beneficial owners of the Bonds.

(iii) Upon the termination of the services of DTC with respect to
the Bonds, or upon the discontinuance or termination of the
services of DTC with respect to any portion of the Bonds pursuant
to either Section 2(b)(4)(i) or Section 2(b)(4)(ii) hereof after which
no substitute bond depository willing to undertake the functions
of DTC hereunder can be found which, in the opinion of the City,
is willing and able to undertake such functions upon reasonable
and customary terms, the City is obligated to deliver Bond
certificates to the Bondholders and the Bonds shall no longer be
restricted to being registered in the registration books kept by the
Bond Registrar and Paying Agent in the name of Cede & Co. as
nominee of DTC, but may be registered in whatever name or
names the Bondholders transferring or exchanging Bonds shall
designate, in accordance with the provisions of th is Resolution.

(5) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to the
contrary, so long as any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co.,
as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to principal of, premium,
if any, and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to such
Bond shall be made and given, respectively, in accordance with the
Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations.

(c) Numbering - The Bonds shall be numbered in consecutive numerical order
from R-1 upwards as issued.

(d) Date of Bonds - The Bonds shall initially be dated May 25, 2016. Bonds
issued upon exchanges and transfers of Bonds shall also be dated May
25, 2016 if issued prior to November 1, 2016, and if issued upon such
exchanges and transfers on or after November 1, 2016, shall be dated
as of May 1 or November 1 next preceding their issuance, or if the date
of issuance shall be a May 1 or November 1, as of such date; provided,

4



however, that if interest on the Bonds shall be in default, the Bonds shall
be dated as of the date to which interest has been paid in full on the
Bonds being transferred.

(e) Payment - Interest on the Bonds and, upon presentation and surrender
thereof, the principal thereof shall be payable in lawful money of the
United States of America by check, draft or wire transfer by Starion Bond
Services, Bismarck, North Dakota, as Bond Registrar and Paying Agent,
or its successor. In the event the Bonds are no longer registered as book
entry bonds pursuant to Section 2(b) hereof, such Bond Registrar and
Paying Agent is hereby appointed the sole paying agent for the Bonds.

(f) Principal Maturities - The Bonds shall mature serially and shall mature on
May 1 in the years and in the amounts set forth in the Schedule of
Maturities and Interest Rates attached hereto as Attachment 1.

(g) Optional Redemption - Bonds maturing in the years 2017 through 2021
are payable on their respective stated maturity dates without option of
prior payment. Bonds maturing in the years 2022 and thereafter shall be
subject to redemption and prepayment in whole or in part at the option
of the City, in inverse order of maturities and by lot, assigned in
proportion to their principal amount, within any maturity, on May 1,
2021, and on any date thereafter selected by the City, at a price equal
to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest. Not less than 30
days prior to the date specified for prepayment and redemption of any
Bonds the City will cause notice of the call thereof to be mailed to the
registered owner and to the paying agent at which principal and interest
are then payable. Upon partial redemption of any Bond, a new Bond or
Bonds will be delivered to the owner without charge, representing the
remaining principal amount outstanding.

(h) Type and Denomination of Bonds - The Bonds shall be in fully registered
form in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, of
single maturities.

(i) Form, Preparation, Execution and Delivery - The Bonds shall be
reproduced in substantially the form attached to this Resolution as
Attachment 2. The Bonds shall be prepared under the supervision and
at the direction of the City Administrator, executed by the manual or
facsimile signature of the President of the Board of City Commissioners
(or in the absence or inability of the President to act, by the manual or
facsimile signature of the Vice President) and attested to by the manual
or facsimile signature of the City Administrator and delivered to the

5



owner at closing upon receipt of the purchase price plus any accrued
interest. The Bonds shall not be valid or become obligatory for any
purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit under this Resolution
until the Certificate of Authentication thereon shall have been executed
by the Bond Registrar by manual signature of one of its authorized
representatives.

(j) Interest - The Bonds shall bear interest at the annual rates set forth in the
Schedule of Maturities and Interest Rates attached hereto as
Attachment 1. Interest shall be payable on May 1 and November 1 in
each year, commencing November 1, 2016, to the person in whose name
each Bond is registered on the close of the 15th day (whether or not a
business day) of the immediately preceding month. Interest shall be
computed on a 30-day month and 360-day year basis. Interest on the
Bonds shall cease at maturity or on a date prior thereto on which they
have been duly called for redemption unless the holder thereof shall
present the same for payment and payment is refused.

(k) Source of Payment/Security - The Bonds shall be payable from the City
of Mandan Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series A Fund into
which will be deposited payments of principal and interest on the
definitive improvement warrants referred to in Section 5 hereof (the
"Warrants"), which Warrants are payable from the funds of various
improvement districts specified in the Prior Resolutions which derive their
revenues from the levy and collection of special assessments against
benefited property and, to the extent provided in the Financing
Resolutions referenced in the Prior Resolutions, from general taxation of
all the taxable property in the City.

(I) Registration - The Bonds shall be registered as to both principal and
interest and the Bond Registrar shall establish and maintain a register for
the purposes of recording the names and addresses of the registered
owners or assigns, the dates of such registration and the due dates and
amounts for payment of principal and interest on the Bonds; and the City
and the Bond Registrar may deem and treat the person in whose name
any Bond is registered as the absolute owner thereof, whether the Bond
is overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment and for all other
purposes, and neither the City nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by
any notice to the contrary.

(m) Assignment - The Bonds are transferable upon the books of the City at
the principal office of the Bond Registrar, by the registered owner thereof
in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing upon surrender

6



thereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the
Bond Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney;
and may also be surrendered in exchange for Bonds of other authorized
denominations. Upon such transfer or exchange the City will cause a
new Bond or Bonds to be issued in the name of the transferee or
registered owner, of the same aggregate principal amount, bearing
interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date, subject to
reimbursement for any tax, fee or governmental charge required to be
paid with respect to such transfer or exchange. No transfer of Bonds
shall be required to be made during the fifteen days next preceding an
interest payment date, nor during the forty-five days next preceding the
date fixed for redemption of Bonds.

(n) Discharge - When all of the Bonds, and the interest thereon have been
defeased and discharged as provided in this Section 2(n), all pledges,
covenants and other rights granted by this Resolution shall cease. The
City may defease and discharge all Bonds and interest due on any date
by depositing with the Paying Agent on or before that date a sum
sufficient for the payment thereof in full; or if any Bond or interest
thereon should not be paid when due, the same may nevertheless be
defeased and discharged by depositing with the Paying Agent a sum
sufficient for the payment thereof in full with interest accrued from the
due date to the date of such deposit. The City may also defease and
discharge all prepayable Bonds called for redemption on any date when
they are prepayable according to their terms, by depositing with the
Paying Agent on or before that date a sum sufficient for the payment
thereof in full, provided that notice of the redemption thereof has been
duly given as provided herein. The City may also defease and discharge
all Bonds at any time by irrevocably depositing in escrow with an escrow
agent, for the purpose of paying all principal and interest due on such
Bonds prior to a date upon which all of the same will be payable or
prepayable according to their terms, and paying all remaining Bonds on
that date, a sum of cash and securities of the types described in North
Dakota Century Code Section 40-27-13 in such aggregate amount,
bearing interest at such rates and maturing or callable at the holder's
option on such dates as shall be required to provide funds sufficient for
this purpose; provided that notice of the redemption of all prepayable
Bonds on or before such date has been duly given as required herein.

Section 3. Establishment of Refunding Fund. There is hereby created City of
Mandan Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2016, Series A Fund (the "Refunding Fund")
which shall be maintained by the City Administrator as a separate and special fund for
the sale purpose of payment of principal and interest on any outstanding Bonds and

7



shall be maintained until all balances of principal and interest on the Bonds are fully
paid. Any proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds remaining after discharge of
the Refunded Bonds and payment of costs of issuance pursuant to Section 4 hereof
are hereby appropriated and shall be credited to the Refunding Fund. There is also
hereby appropriated to the Refunding Fund on discharge of all Prior Bonds all of the
funds heretofore appropriated for the payment of the Prior Bonds, and payments shall
be made on the Warrants in the same manner as though none of the Refunded Bonds
had been refunded . All earnings from investment of the Refunding Fund and all
payments of principal and interest made on the Warrants shall be credited to the
Refunding Fund and shall be used and applied in payment of the principal and interest
on the Bonds as such principal and interest become due.

Section 4. Payment of Costs and Redemption of Refunded Bonds. The proceeds
received from the sale of the Bonds (net of any accrued interest) together with any
investment earnings on such proceeds and such amounts as needed from the Prior
Funds shall be used and applied to pay and redeem the principal of the Refunded
Bonds on June 9, 2016 and interest accrued thereon to such redemption date and to
pay costs of issuance of the Bonds. The City Administrator is hereby authorized and
directed, if not already having caused the same to be done, to cause Notices of
Redemption, in substantially the form as attached to this Resolution as Attachment 4,
to be timely mailed to the registered owners of the Refunded Bonds and to the paying
agent therefor. The City Administrator is further authorized and directed to cause the
aforementioned payments and deposits, and such transfers necessary therefor, to be
timely made.

Section 5 . Transfer of Warrants. It is hereby found, determined and declared
that the Warrants held as assets of the 2007C Fund pursuant to the 2007C
Resolution, the 2007D Fund pursuant to the 2007D Resolution and the 2008B Fund
pursuant to the 2008B Resolution shall, simultaneously with discharge of the Refunded
Bonds herein authorized, be immediately transferred and deposited into the Refunding
Fund created hereby, and shall be held as assets in trust for the holders of the Bonds.

Section 6. Covenants and Agreements of the City. The City hereby covenants
and agrees with the holders from time to time of the Bonds:

(a) That the Warrants are validly issued and that special assessments are
validly levied for the payment of the costs of the improvements defrayed
thereby and are payable in years and amounts required by law and that
the City will use due diligence to pay the Warrants and to levy and collect
the special assessments and, as provided in the financing resolutions
authorizing issuance of the Warrants, to levy and collect taxes
appropriated for their payment.

8



(b) That it will preserve and enforce for the security of the Bonds all of the
rights, powers and privileges reserved to holders of the Warrants and all
of the covenants of the City as provided in the financing resolutions
authorizing the same.

(c) That the City recognizes its obligations under the provisions of Section
40-26-08 of the North Dakota Century Code that whenever all special
assessments, utility revenues and taxes, if any, appropriated and
theretofore collected for the improvements for which the Warrants were
issued are insufficient to pay principal or interest then due on such
Warrants, this governing body is required by law to levy a tax upon all
taxable property within the City for the payment of such deficiency. The
City is also authorized, in its discretion, to levy such a tax if at any time
a deficiency is deemed likely to occur within one year. Such taxes may
be levied without limitation as to rate or amount, and the City covenants
and agrees that all collections thereof will be credited to the Refunding
Fund.

(d) In the event the monies in the Refunding Fund should at any time be
insufficient to make payments of principal and interest then due on the
Bonds, said moneys shall be applied as follows: First, to the payment to
the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest then due on the
Bonds (including any interest on overdue principal) in the order of the
maturity of such installments, earliest maturities first, and, if the amounts
available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any installments of interest
maturing on the same date, then to the payment thereof ratably,
according to the amount due thereon, to the persons entitled thereto; and
Second, to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid
principal and premium, if any, due and unpaid on the Bonds at the time
of such payment, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for
principal and redemption premium, to the persons entitled thereto without
any discrimination or preference. The City reserves the right and privilege
of refunding any of such matured Bonds for the payment of which
moneys are not at the time available by issuing new refunding
improvement bonds pursuant to Chapter 40-27 of the North Dakota
Century Code.

Section 7. Arbitrage. The City covenants that (i) it will restrict the use of the
proceeds of the Bonds in such manner and to such extent as may be necessary, in
view of the City's reasonable expectations at the time of issuance of the Bonds, so
that the Bonds will not constitute "arbitrage bonds" under Section 148 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 and regulations applicable thereto, and (ii) it will take all
actions that may be required of it (including, without implied limitation, the timely filing

9



of a federal information return with respect to the Bonds and the payment of required
rebate, if any) so that the interest on the Bonds will be and remain excluded from
gross income for federal income tax purposes, and will not take any actions which
would adversely affect such exclusion.

Section 8. Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure. The City hereby
covenants and agrees, for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds, to enter into a
written undertaking (the "Undertaking") required by SEC Rule 15c2-12 promulgated
by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934 (the "Rule") to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial
information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events
in accordance with the Rule. This Undertaking shall be enforceable by the holders of
the Bonds, or by the Purchaser on behalf of such holders (provided that the rights of
the holders and the Purchaser to enforce the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to
obtain specific enforcement of the obligations thereunder and any failure by the City
to comply with the provision of this Undertaking shall not be an event of default with
respect to the Bonds). The City Administrator and President of the Board of City
Commissioners shall provide a Continuing Disclosure Certificate for inclusion in the
transcript of proceedings , setting forth the details and terms of the City's Undertaking.

Section 9. Other Proceedings. The officers of the City and Morton County are
authorized and directed to prepare and furnish to the attorneys passing on the legality
of the Bonds, certified copies of all proceedings, ordinances, resolutions and records
and all such certificates and affidavits and other instruments as may be required to
evidence the legality and marketability of the Bonds and the tax-exempt status of
interest payable thereon, and all certified copies, certificates, affidavits and other
instruments so furnished shall constitute representations of the City as to the
correctness of all facts stated or recited therein.

Section 10. Official Statement. The Official Statement, dated May 10, 2016,
relating to the Bonds is hereby approved and the City Administrator is authorized to
certify to its correctness and completeness.

Section 11. Amendment. All prior resolutions and other acts or proceedings
of this governing body which are in any way inconsistent with the terms of this
Resolution are hereby amended to the extent necessary to give full force and effect to
this Resolution.

(REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

10



Adopted this 17th day of May, 2016 .

ATTEST:

City Administrator

(S E A L)

11

CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA

President, Board of City Commissioners



The governing body of the political subdivision acted on the foregoing resolution

on May 17, 2016, as follows:

Adoption moved by Seconded by _

Roll Call Vote (List Last Names)

"Aye"

"Nay" _

Absent _

and after vote the presiding officer declared the resolution adopted .

12


	Agenda May 17, 2016
	Minutes - May 2, 2016 Working Session
	Minutes - May 3, 2016 regular mtg. added 5-16-16
	Bid No. 1 - Street Impr. D203 Proj. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 4th Addn.)
	Bid No. 2 - Street Impr. D206 Proj. 2016-07 (Big Sky Additions)
	Bid No. 3 Revised Bids for Wayfinding Sign Fabrication & Installation
	Wayfinding Sign Bid Recommendation (Mann Signs)
	Wayfinding Sign Contract Mann Signs-City of Mandan
	Bid No. 3 - Bids for Way-finding Sign Fabrication & Installation
	Corrected 2015 Value - Travis & Debbie Toepke
	Main Street ADA Curb Ramp Improvements, CPM Agreement
	Mandan Soccer Club Road Closure Request - Red Wing Drive
	Public Works sale of property with estimated value over $1,000
	Buggies-n-Blues, Wild West Grill Fest, & Oktoberfest Street dance/beer gardens application requests from Mandan Progress Organization
	Mandan Eagles Club All-School Reunion beer garden application - July 2, 2016
	Silver Dollar Bar application for beer garden/street dance June 11th and July 2-3, 2016
	Horse Race ND site authorization at Moscow Bar July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017
	Horse Race ND site authorization at Strawberry Bar July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017
	Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation site authorization at Lonesome Dove - July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017
	Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation site authorization at Seven Seas (Baymont Inn & Suites) July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017
	Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation at Midway Lanes - July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017
	Ryker Wallace Benefit games of chance at Roughrider Harley Davidson June 1, 2016 - August 27, 2016
	Rug Rat Benefit Softball Tournament (Bismarck Cancer Center) games of chance at Mandan Softball Complex - June 3, 2016
	Fire Code Appeals Board
	301 E Main Street Overview
	301 E Main Invitation for Bids - proposed
	Mandan Progress Organization (MPO) Grant funding
	Swap two projects within 2017-2020 Draft TIP
	Old Red Trail Adjacent to Sports Complex Update - Revised 5/17/16
	Old Red Trail Adjacent to Sports Complex Update
	Request for Annexation & Utility Service at 2300 14th Ave. SE (Kroh Annex.)
	Res. Authorizing Issuance of $5,030,000 Refunding Impr. Bonds of 2016, Series A



